
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
WEDNESDAY,  AUGUST 12, 2020 

           Closed Session – 6:00 PM 
Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 

 
City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 

317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 
 

MISSION STATEMENT  
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 
 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

Erin Minett, Mayor 
    Douglass Fleming, Council Member              Duane Strawser, Vice Mayor 

Daniela Fernández, Council Member   Vacant, Council Member 
 

The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 
each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 
local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  
Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 
City, CA during normal business hours. 
In order to minimize the spread of the COVID 19 virus Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend requirements of the Brown Act.   Please be advised 
that the Council Chambers are closed to the public and that some, or all, of the City of Nevada 
City, City Council Members may attend this meeting telephonically. 
 
1. You are strongly encouraged to observe the City Council meetings live on PUBLIC 
TELEVISION CHANNEL 17,  ONLINE AT THE CITY’S WEBSITE 
WWW.NEVADACITYCA.GOV or Nevada City Public Meetings-YouTube Channel or at  
HTTP://NEVCO.GRANICUS.COM/PLAYER/CAMERA/2?PUBLISH_ID=7 (If you are unable 
to view the meeting live on YouTube please use one of the other 3 methods). 
 
2. If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, please submit your comment 
via email to NEVADACITY.OLSON@GMAIL.COM.  Comments will be accepted at the email 
provided through the live meeting.  PLEASE INCLUDE YOUR NAME AND ADDRESS IN 
YOUR COMMENT, AS WELL AS, INCLUDING THE AGENDA ITEM LETTER AND 
NUMBER IN YOUR SUBJECT LINE.  Please keep your written comments to 3 minutes or 
less.  Every effort will be made to read your comment into the record, but some comments may 
not be read due to time constraints. 
 
3. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-
2496 x133.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  [28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA 
Title II].   
 
The City of Nevada City thanks you in advance for taking all precautions to prevent spreading 
the COVID 19 virus.  
 

 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCXSQwrXtey12YIl3IbyGMYQ
http://nevco.granicus.com/player/camera/2?publish_id=7
mailto:NEVADACITY.OLSON@GMAIL.COM


ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 
questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 
opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. 
IF YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those 
issues you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.  
CLOSED SESSION:  6:00 PM 
 
Under Government Code Section 54950 members of the public are entitled to comment on the closed session 
agenda before the Council goes into closed session. 
   

1. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) City Attorney, Crystal Hodgson, 
City Manager, Catrina Olson and Police Chief, Chad Ellis are requesting a closed session 
to discuss the potential for litigation being initiated by the City in a certain matter. 

  
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Mayor Minett, Vice Mayor Strawser, Council Members Fleming and Fernández  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
PROCLAMATIONS:   
 
PRESENTATIONS:   
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 
the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 
jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  
Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 
certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
 

3. CONSENT ITEMS: 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City 
Council and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, 
members of the Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed 
from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. 
 
 
 
 

 



A. Subject: Notice of Completion for Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements Project in 
Nevada City 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution for the City of Nevada 
City authorizing the Mayor to sign a Notice of Completion for Downtown Curb 
Ramp Improvements  project in Nevada City and authorize the City Clerk to file said 
Notice of Completion with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office. 
 

B. Subject: Notice of Completion for the Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom 
Improvements  Project in Nevada City 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution for the City of Nevada 
City authorizing the Mayor to sign a Notice of Completion for the Pioneer Park 
Picnic Area Bathroom Improvements project in Nevada City and authorize the City 
Clerk to file said Notice of Completion with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office.   
 

C. Subject: Award Contract Amendment for Professional Engineering Services for 
Nevada Street Bridge over Deer Creek  
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City of Nevada 
City Awarding a Contract Amendment for a fixed price, not to exceed the amount of 
$14,861.85 for Professional Engineering Services for Nevada Street Bridge over 
Deer Creek based on hourly labor, and other rates set forth in Consultant’s cost 
proposal, to Dokken Engineering of Folsom, CA improvements in the form attached 
hereto as “Exhibit A,” and incorporated herein by this reference, and the authorize 
City Engineer to sign. 
 

D. Subject:  Authorization for Procurement of Nevada City Wastewater Plant Aeration 
Basin Mixer  
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City of Nevada 
City Council authorizing the City Manager or designee to sign purchase orders for 
the procurement of Nevada City Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin Mixer from Pac 
Machine Company in the amount of $6,469.00 plus $500.00 in contingencies. 
 

E. Subject:  Memorandum of Understanding Between Nevada Irrigation District and 
the City of Nevada City  
Recommendation: Review and approve the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between Nevada Irrigation District and the City of Nevada City and 
authorize the Fire Chief to sign. 
 

F. Subject:  Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the 
City of Nevada City Repealing and Reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code Setting the Date for General Municipal Elections 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada 
City repealing and reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code 
setting the date for General Municipal Elections. 
 

G. Subject:  Operations & Maintenance Agreement with the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control for the Providence Mine Site 
Recommendation: Review and approve the Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement with the Department of Toxic Substances Control and authorize the 
Mayor to sign. 



H. Subject:  Action Minutes July 23, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting   
Recommendation: Review and approve regular City Council meeting action 
minutes of July 23, 2020. 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
A. Subject: Memorandum of Understanding for Nevada County CARES Act Funding   

Recommendation: Provide staff direction as to the acceptance, authorizing the City 
Manager to sign, or denial of the memorandum of understanding (MOU) for Nevada 
County CARES Act funding. 
 

B. Subject: Update Regarding the Strategic Planning Retreat Set for August 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Provide staff direction, to bring back to Council at the 
September 23, 2020 meeting, an item to discuss setting a new Strategic Planning 
Retreat date for October 2020. 
 

C. Subject: LAFCo Nevada City Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update  
Recommendation:  Provide staff direction for any formal comments City Council 
would like to provide to LAFCo regarding the draft EIR prepared for the Nevada 
City Sphere Of Influence (SOI) Update to be provided in a letter from the Mayor. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Subject: Recommended Application of a City-Sponsored Annexation of 
Approximately 35.2 Acres (Including 16.3 Acres of Public Right-of-Way Area), at 
Three Distinct Areas Within the City Sphere of Influence; Recommended Pre-
Zoning of the Annexation Territory and Recommended General Plan Amendment 
For One 1.5 Acre Parcel to Accommodate the Existing Commercial Child Care Use 
of the Property 
Recommendation:   

1. Approve Resolution 2020-XX (attachment 4) authorizing staff to file a 
Notice of Exemption for the pre-zoning and annexation of the 35.2 acres 
being considered for annexation. 

2. Authorize the first reading of Ordinance 2020-XX  (attachment 5) relating to 
the General Plan Amendment and pre-zoning of the 35.2 acres of Nevada 
County territory to be annexed into the City of Nevada City.  

3. Approve Resolution 2020-XX, initiating an annexation application with 
LAFCo for all that territory delineated in the map known as Annexation #56 
(Exhibit B of Resolution). 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject: Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternates(s) for the 2020 League of 

California Cities Annual Conference October 7-9, 2020 
Recommendation: Pass a motion designating a voting delegate and alternate(s) for 
the League of California Cities Business meeting to be held on Friday, October 9, 
2020. 



 
 
 

B. Subject: City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
Recommendation: Review and consider appointment of City Council Members and 
members of the public to City and external Boards, Committees and Commissions 
for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.  

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE: 

 
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 
10.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 
11.  ADJOURNMENT 

   
Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Gabrielle Christakes, Administrative Services Technician/Deputy City Clerk for the City of Nevada City, 
declares that the foregoing agenda for the August 12th, 2020 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City 
Council was posted August 7th, 2020 at the entrance of City Hall. The agenda is also posted on the City’s 
website www.nevadacityca.gov.   
 
Signed August 7th, 2020, at Nevada City, California 
      
___________________________________________________ 
Gabrielle Christakes, Administrative Services Technician/Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________  

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
City Council 

Long Range Calendar 
 
August 12, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
August 24, 2020 Strategic Planning 
August 26, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
September 7, 2020 Holiday 
September 9, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
September 23, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
October 12, 2020 Holiday 
October 14, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
October 28, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 
NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a 
meeting. 
 
NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 
while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Notice of Completion for Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements Project in 
Nevada City 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution for the City of Nevada City 
authorizing the Mayor to sign a Notice of Completion for Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements  
project in Nevada City and authorize the City Clerk to file said Notice of Completion with the 
Nevada County Recorder’s Office.   
 
CONTACT:  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
City Engineering and Public Works staff identified areas where Curb Ramp Improvements are 
needed at various locations in the Downtown Historic District.  This project was identified as a 
priority for ADA improvements and funding was procured through the Community Development 
Block Program (CDBG).    
   
City staff procured bids for Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements from local contractors.  
Mattingly Concrete was awarded the contract by City Council on February 12, 2020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The project was funded by a Community Development Block Program 
(CDBG) grant administered by California Department of Housing & Community Development 
and the City’s Measure S funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  
 Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution for the City of Nevada City Authorizing the Mayor to 

sign a Notice of Completion for Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements   
 Exhibit ‘A’, Notice of Completion  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
 

RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO SIGN A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR DOWNTOWN CURB 

RAMP IMPROVEMENTS 

 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City that 
the Mayor is authorized to sign a “Notice of Completion”, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and labeled “Exhibit A” which completes the construction of the 
Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements project in Nevada City. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is authorized to file said “Notice 
of Completion”, Exhibit A (attached) with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Nevada City on August 12, 2020, by the following vote:  

 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

   

 
  
      ________________________________ 
      Erin Minett, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

 



                                                                                                       EXHIBIT A
RECORDING REQUESTED BY and
WHEN RECORDING MAIL TO:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK
CITY OF NEVADA CITY
317 Broad Street
Nevada City, CA  95959

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR DEPUTY CITY CLERK'S USE ONLY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1.  That the undersigned is OWNER or agent of the OWNER of the interest of estate stated below in the
      property hereinafter described.

2.  The FULL NAME of the OWNER is: City of Nevada City

3.  The FULL ADDRESS of the OWNER is:  317 Broad St, Nevada City, CA 95959

4.  The nature of the INTEREST or Estate of the undersigned is: FEE

5.  A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was COMPLETED: June 26, 2020

6.  The work of improvement completed is described as follows:  Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements 
 project in the City of Nevada City.
7.  The NAME OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR, if any, for such work of improvement is:  Mattingly Concrete

8.  The location of said project work is: various location in downtown Nevada City

9.  The property of which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of Nevada City, County of
Nevada, State of California and is described as follows:  public streets in Historic Downtown District.

       City of Nevada City      
                 Owner

by: ___________________________________
        Erin Minett, Mayor

   __________________________________________    ________________________________________
(Date and Place) (Signature)

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

"I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct."



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Notice of Completion for the Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom Improvements  
Project in Nevada City 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution for the City of Nevada City 
authorizing the Mayor to sign a Notice of Completion for the Pioneer Park Picnic Area 
Bathroom Improvements project in Nevada City and authorize the City Clerk to file said Notice 
of Completion with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office.   
 
CONTACT:  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
Dawn Zydonis, the Parks and Recreation Manager, City Engineering and Public Works staff 
identified the picnic area bathrooms as a priority for renovation at Pioneer Park.  The bathroom 
renovation is necessary for ADA accessibility and to upgrade the facility for its use by citizens 
and visitors of the park.  The bathroom is also available for use during facility rental of the 
Bandshell/Amphitheater, picnic areas and for special events. 
 
City staff solicited bids for the Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom Improvements project from 
local contractors.  Barsotti Contracting was awarded the contract by City Council on December 
10, 2019 and the project was completed in June 2020. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The project was funded by fiscal year 2019-2020 Special Funds and 
Buildings and Grounds capital outlay for Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom Improvements.  
(These funds are from multiple Special Fund accounts including AB1600, Quimby and 
Measure L).   ADA accessibility improvements for this project are funded by a Community 
Development Block Program (CDBG) administered by California Department of Housing & 
Community Development. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  
 Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution for the City of Nevada City Authorizing the Mayor to 

sign a Notice of Completion for Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom Improvements  
 Exhibit ‘A’, Notice of Completion  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
 

RESOLUTION FOR THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO SIGN A NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR PIONEER PARK 

PICNIC AREA BATHROOM IMPROVEMENTS  

 

 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City that 
the Mayor is authorized to sign a “Notice of Completion”, a copy of which is 
attached hereto and labeled “Exhibit A” which completes the construction of the 
Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom Improvements project in Nevada City. 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is authorized to file said “Notice 
of Completion”, Exhibit A (attached) with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Nevada City on August 12, 2020, by the following vote:  

 
AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

   

 
  
      ________________________________ 
      Erin Minett, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

 



                                                                                                       EXHIBIT A
RECORDING REQUESTED BY and
WHEN RECORDING MAIL TO:

DEPUTY CITY CLERK
CITY OF NEVADA CITY
317 Broad Street
Nevada City, CA  95959

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR DEPUTY CITY CLERK'S USE ONLY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT:

1.  That the undersigned is OWNER or agent of the OWNER of the interest of estate stated below in the
      property hereinafter described.

2.  The FULL NAME of the OWNER is: City of Nevada City

3.  The FULL ADDRESS of the OWNER is:  317 Broad St, Nevada City, CA 95959

4.  The nature of the INTEREST or Estate of the undersigned is: FEE

5.  A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was COMPLETED: June 26, 2020

6.  The work of improvement completed is described as follows:  Pioneer Park Picnic Area Bathroom
Improvements project in the City of Nevada City.
7.  The NAME OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACTOR, if any, for such work of improvement is:  Barsotti Contracting

8.  The location of said project work is: Pioneer Park in Nevada City

9.  The property of which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of Nevada City, County of
Nevada, State of California and is described as follows:  Pioneer Park, being a public City park.

       City of Nevada City      
                 Owner

by: ___________________________________
        Erin Minett, Mayor

   __________________________________________    ________________________________________
(Date and Place) (Signature)

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

"I certify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct."



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Award Contract Amendment for Professional Engineering Services for 
Nevada Street Bridge over Deer Creek                         
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City of Nevada 
City Awarding a Contract Amendment for a fixed price, not to exceed the amount of 
$14,861.85 for Professional Engineering Services for Nevada Street Bridge over Deer 
Creek based on hourly labor, and other rates set forth in Consultant’s cost proposal, to 
Dokken Engineering of Folsom, CA improvements in the form attached hereto as 
“Exhibit A,” and incorporated herein by this reference, and the authorize City Engineer 
to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
The City is proposing to replace the existing bridge on Nevada Street over Deer Creek. 
The project is located at the south end of Nevada Street, near Broad Street in Nevada 
City, CA.  The bridge has been programmed for replacement as a result of routine 
bridge inspections conducted by Caltrans which identified numerous deficiencies.  
Furthermore, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) conducted a National Bridge 
Inspection and identified that the bridge has unknown foundations and is considered 
scour critical.  The proposed project site includes bridge approaches, and approximately 
300 linear feet of Nevada Street, and portions of adjacent privately owned and publicly 
owned parcels. 
 
The existing Bridge is an approximately 34-ft wide, 61-ft long, two-span steel girder 
bridge constructed in 1938. The bridge was evaluated by Caltrans as functionally 
obsolete in the most recent Bridge Inspection Report dated September, 2014.  The 
existing bridge has two lanes with sidewalk on both sides.  The bridge is located within 
Nevada City Downtown Historic District which is listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places.  A bridge was originally constructed at this location in the 1860’s and 
later reconstructed in 1938.  The City plans to reconstruct the bridge using natural rock 
walls (and/or rock facing) and aesthetic railings to closely match the original 1860’s 
bridge but with structural elements that meet current bridge standards.  The proposed 
bridge will be an approximately 42-ft wide, 68-ft span with a 30-degree skew angle.  The 
proposed skew will be used to improve roadway approaches.  The project will require 
utility relocations of sewer, water, electric and telephone.     
  
City staff procured proposals for Professional Engineering Services to prepare and 
provide the City with all required studies, plans and specifications for Bridge 
Replacement in accordance with the Highway Bridge Program and Caltrans standards 

file://FS-NEVCT/NEVCITY/CLERK/CITY%20COUNCIL%20MEETINGS/Agendas%202017/CC%20Agenda%2012.13.17/www.nevadacityca.gov


and requirements for Federal and State funded projects.  Dokken Engineering was 
selected as the most qualified consultant capable of performing the tasks required 
based on the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFP. 
 
To-date, the City and its consultants have completed a topographic survey, 
environmental permitting, utility relocation plans, geotechnical investigations and 
design.  Final rights-of-way documentation is expected to be finalized by the end of 
April, 2020, at which time the City will submit a request for authorization or construction 
to Caltrans Local Assistance. 
 
City Council formally awarded the initial contract work to Dokken Engineering for bridge 
design in 2016 including amendments 1 and 2.  Contract Amendment 3 was approved 
by City Council on Sept. 14, 2019 for design changes due to environmental 
considerations.  Contract Amendments 4 and 5, approved by City Council on March 25, 
2020 included contract increases for additional right of way services requested by 
Caltrans/FHWA.  This current proposed Contract Amendment 6, requests a contract 
increase to provide additional retaining wall layout, design and specifications for entry to 
the creek zone from the Boulder Street Property parking lot as well as revisions to the 
final design of street lighting and underground utilities. 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project will be funded by Federal Highway Bridge 
funds with an 11.4% match from Measure “S” funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City of Nevada City Awarding a Contract 

Amendment to Dokken Engineering for Professional Engineering Services for 
Nevada Street Bridge Over Deer Creek in Nevada City 

 Contract Amendment No. 6 with Dokken Engineering 



RESOLUTION 2020-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
AWARDING A CONTRACT AMENDMENT TO DOKKEN ENGINEERING FOR 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR  
NEVADA STREET BRIDGE OVER DEER CREEK IN NEVADA CITY  

 
WHEREAS, the City is in the process of replacing the 1938 bridge programmed for 
replacement as a result of routine bridge inspections conducted by Caltrans which 
identified numerous deficiencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Nevada City Council awarded a contract for Bridge Design to Dokken 
Engineering of Folsom, CA for Phase 1 on June 8, 2016 and for Phases 2 and 3 on 
September 28, 2016; and 
  
WHEREAS, additional right of way services, as further described in the Addendum 6 
scope of work, have been identified as being necessary for completion of design and 
right of way phases of the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, funding for Bridge Design has been procured through the Federal Highway 
Bridge Replacement program (88.6% Federal participation) and Nevada City Measure 
“S” (11.4% local matching funds); and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Nevada City awards a contract 
amendment for a fixed price, not to exceed amount of $14,861.85 for professional 
engineering services for Nevada Street Bridge over Deer Creek based on hourly labor, 
and other rates set forth in consultant’s cost proposal, to Dokken engineering of 
Folsom, CA in the form attached hereto as “Exhibit A,” and incorporated herein by this 
reference, and authorize the City Engineer to sign. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Nevada City City 
Council held on this 12th day of August, 2020 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 

____________________________ 
Reinette Senum, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



110 Blue Ravine Road, Suite 200, Folsom, CA  95630    Tele:  916 858-0642    Fax:  916 858-0643    www.dokkenengineering.com 

July 28, 2020 

City of Nevada City  
Attn: Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, CA 95959 

Subject:  Amendment No. 6 to Nevada Street Bridge Replacement Professional Engineering 
Contract dated 6/24/2016 

Dear Mr. McAlister, 

Dokken Engineering is pleased the Nevada Street Bridge replacement is nearing authorization for 
construction.  The purpose of this letter is to request Amendment No. 6 to the June 24, 2016 Agreement 
between Nevada City and Dokken Engineering. This amendment requests a contract increase to provide 
requested retaining wall layout, design and specifications for entry to the creek zone from the Boulder 
Street Property parking lot as well as revisions to the final design of street lighting, underground utilities 
and removal of the snow gate. 

About half the cost of this amendment is design of the retaining wall at the creek access point discussed 
on site with Chuck Kull of NV5 on June 30, 2020.  

A more detailed description of these 4 services is provided in the attached Exhibit A, “Amendment No. 6 
Scope of Services” and broken down by Task 7.5, 7.6, 8.6, and 9.4.  Anticipated costs are to be charged 
and invoiced on the tasks listed above per the detail in the attached, “Exhibit B, Amendment 6 Nevada 
Street Bridge over Deer Creek”. 

The original contract with prior amendments is summarized in the table below.  

Contract History Contract Price 
Original Contract 6/24/16 $309,280.00 
Amendment 1 for appraisals $3,887.23 
Amendment 2 $0.00 
Amendment 3 for additional design $55,134.98 
Amendment 4 for right of way support $5,954.08 
Amendment 5 for right of way services $11,490.00 
This Amendment 6 for right of way services $14,861.85 
Total Amended Contract Price $400,608.14 

If you approve this Amendment No. 6, please sign below or provide a separate Amendment authorization.  
Thank you for your continued trust in Dokken Engineering as we work to get this project complete.  We 
are looking forward the construction of this unique bridge. 

Thank you, 

________________________________ _______________________________ 
Matthew Griggs, PE  Bryan McAlister, PE  
Project Manager City Engineer 
Dokken Engineering   City of Nevada City  



 
 
Professional Engineering Services for the Nevada Street over Deer Creek Bridge Replacement 

 

 

EXHIBIT A – AMENDMENT NO. 6 SCOPE OF SERVICES 
July 28, 2020 

Task 7.5 Bridge Railings (Snow Gate Removal) 
The construction details will be revised to remove the snow gate railing and anchorage blocks from the plans.  A fixed 
continuation of the Broad Street Bridge Railing will be detailed to transition to the Nevada Street Bridge rails.  The 
estimate and special provisions will be revised to eliminate the snow gate and add more structural railing. 

Task 7.6 Access Wall Design 
Dokken and NV5 will prepare the design of the creek access wall from the parking lot of 115 Boulder Street to the creek.  
The design will include removal and reconstruction of the top 6 feet of the existing dry-stacked wall to improve 
accessibility for the Contractor and ensure the post-construction wall integrity is not in question.  This work includes: 

• Dokken to prepare a layout of the proposed wall replacement limits 
• NV5 to provide dry-stack wall design detail - NV5 will take the geometric limits developed by Dokken in the wall 

layout and provide a wall design for the dry stacked wall to be placed in a gravity, hand placed rock slope 
• Dokken to include NV5 details into the project plans and add items for bidding the work 
• Dokken/NV5 to prepare special provisions to add this to the contract 
• Dokken to quantify the items related to the wall and add to the estimate 

 

Task 8.6 Revisions to Bridge Lighting 
Dokken will review the lighting design to reduce the number of streetlights in the project for better consistency with 
other streetlight spacing in town.  An appropriate, but lower, level of lighting will be provided.  The electrical plans and 
estimate will be revised to show the reduced number of lights.   
 

Task 9.4 Modifications to the City Utility Plans 
The City waterline and sewer line plans and quantities will be revised for the following:  1) reduce size of waterline on 
bridge, 2) consider expansion coupling on the bridge for waterline, 3) add more valves at the “T” connections of the line, 
4) revise sewer manholes, and 5) change buried sewer line pipe type to ductile iron.   
 
End of Amendment No. 6 scope. 



EXHIBIT B - COST ESTIMATED BY HOURS AND TASKS
Nevada City

Amendment No. 6 - Nevada Street Bridge over Deer Creek
Revised July 28, 2020

DOKKEN ENGINEERING

TASK
M

at
th

ew
 G

rig
gs

, P
E

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er

M
ar

tin
 M

ae
ch

le
r, 

PE
 , 

Br
id

ge
 D

es
ig

n 
Ch

ec
k

Fo
rt

un
at

o 
En

riq
ue

z, 
PE

 
Pr

oj
ec

t E
ng

in
ee

r

Jo
e 

Os
td

ie
k,

 P
E 

St
re

et
 Li

gh
tin

g

As
so

cia
te

 E
ng

in
ee

r

As
sis

ta
nt

 E
ng

in
ee

r

 S
en

io
r C

AD
D

$217.92 $200.94 $130.18 $172.63 $124.52 $79.24 $149.99
TASK 7 - BRIDGE DESIGN 1 2 18 5 9 35 $4,000.00 $8,709.25

7.5  Bridge Railings (Snow Gate Removal) 6 3 9                              $1,231.08
7.6  Access Wall Design 1 2 12 5 6 26                           $4,000.00 $7,478.17

TASK 8 - ROADWAY DESIGN 3 6 9                              $1,265.05
8.6  Revisions to Street and Bridge Lighting 3 6 9                              $1,265.05

TASK 9 - UTILITY COORDINATION 1 3 14 32 50                           $4,887.55
9.4  Modify Wet Utility Designs and Quantities 1 3 14 32 50                           $4,887.55

TOTAL HOURS 2                     2                     21                   3                     20                   37                   9                     94                           
TOTAL COST  $435.83 $401.87 $2,733.86 $517.90 $2,490.47 $2,931.96 $1,349.95 $4,000.00 $14,861.85

 G
RA

ND
 T

OT
AL

 - 
HO

UR
S

 G
RA

ND
 T

OT
AL

 - 
TO

TA
L C

OS
TS

 G
RA

ND
 T

OT
AL

 - 
DI

RE
CT

 C
OS

TS

TOTALS



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
August 12, 2020            www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Authorization for Procurement of Nevada City Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin 
Mixer  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City of Nevada City 
Council authorizing the City Manager or designee to sign purchase orders for the procurement 
of Nevada City Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin Mixer from Pac Machine Company in the 
amount of $6,469.00 plus $500.00 in contingencies.  
 
CONTACT:   Bryan K. McAlister, City Engineer 
  Michael Faudoa, Chief Plant Operator 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
The Nevada City Wastewater Treatment Plant operates in compliance with the California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board permit which includes waste discharge effluent limitations 
and self-monitoring provisions.  The treatment process involves biological aeration.  There are 
submersible mixers in the Biological Aeration Basin which is a critical component for the 
denitrification process.  One of the mixers has failed and is in need of replacement.    

 
City staff solicited quotes for the Wastewater Plant aeration basin mixer from a vendor that 
specializes in this product.  This is sole source because Pac Machine is the primary supplier for 
City pumps and items of this nature, especially a “Flygt” pump/mixer. The quote for 
improvements are as follows: 
            

• Pac Machine Company 
(equipment only, installation by City staff)  $6,469.00 / Each 
 

City staff recommends the procurement from Pac Machine Company who has provided a 
comprehensive quote. 
FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The project will be funded as authorized in the fiscal year 
2020/2021 capital outlay appropriations for the wastewater treatment.    
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City of Nevada City Council to Authorize the 

Procurement from Pac Machine Company for the Nevada City Wastewater Plant Aeration 
Basin Mixer 

 Vendor Quotes for Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin Mixer 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY COUNCIL TO 
AUTHORIZE THE PROCUREMENT FROM PAC MACHINE COMPANY FOR 

THE NEVADA CITY WASTEWATER PLANT                      
AERATION BASIN MIXER 

 
WHEREAS, Nevada City Wastewater Treatment Plant operates in compliance 
with California Regional Water Quality Control Board permit which includes waste 
discharge effluent limitations and self-monitoring provisions; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the City of Nevada City prioritization of projects 
for permit compliance and Wastewater Treatment Plant improvements, City staff 
procured bids for Wastewater Aeration Basin Mixer; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Nevada City to pass Resolution 2020-XX authorizing the City Manager or 
designee to sign purchase orders for the procurement of Nevada City 
Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin Mixer from Pac Machine Company in the 
amount of $6,469.00 plus $500.00 in contingencies. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Nevada City on the 12th day of August, 2020, by the following vote:  

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:   

 
  
      ________________________________ 
      Erin Minett, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



From: Gerard Marquez

Qty Price Each Amount

1 $6,469.00 $6,469.00

Total: $6,469.00

Regards,
Gerard Marquez

SACRAMENTO, BENICIA, CA
SPARKS, NV

Delivery: 3-4 weeks plus transit

Pac Machine Company

Benicia, CA 94510

Fax: (707) 746-1845

Per your request we're pleased to quote the following Flygt  Submersible Mixer:

Description

To: Michael Faudoa

Phone: (707) 746-4940
Date: July 29, 2020

of: City of Nevada WWTP
Email/Fax: michael.faudoa@nevadacityca.gov

Please Call with any questions.

FOB: Sweden

Phone: 530 446 1658 
Re: Flygt Mixer Quote 

5326 Gateway Plaza Dr

FLYGT Submersible stainless steel mixer model: 4620.410 
equipped with 2.3HP, 460 volts, 3phase motor. 50 ft subcab 
cable. No sliding bracket.

Taxes and freight not included.



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
         City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA 95959  
August 12, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov  
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Memorandum of Understanding Between Nevada Irrigation District and 
the City of Nevada City  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between Nevada Irrigation District and the City of Nevada City and authorize the 
Fire Chief to sign. 
 
CONTACT:  Sam Goodspeed, Division Chief 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) recognizes that the need for coordination 
and cooperation regarding operation and maintenance of public fire hydrants and water 
systems among public agencies is essential for the health, safety and welfare of the 
communities they serve. This MOU sets forth the responsibilities of the Nevada 
Irrigation District (NID) and Nevada City Fire Department with respect to installation, 
operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of public fire hydrants and in 
accordance with NID Rules and Regulations. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   
Hydrant maintenance includes clearing unwanted vegetation within up to three feet from 
the hydrant barrel.  Installation of new hydrants could possibly require grading and 
disruption of natural surroundings.  Necessary environmental reviews would be 
conducted prior to approval.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Nevada City Fire Department currently maintains NID hydrants 
located within the Nevada City, City limits.  No additional costs would be incurred 
through this MOU.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Memorandum of Understanding between Nevada Irrigation District and the City 

of Nevada City 
 

 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

NEVADA IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
 

AND 
 

The following Fire Agencies (Agencies): Grass Valley Fire Department, Higgins Area Fire 

Protection District, Nevada City Fire Department, Nevada County Consolidated Fire Protection 

District, Ophir Hill Fire Protection District, Peardale-Chicago Park Fire District, Penn Valley 

Fire  Protection  District,  Placer County Fire, Rough & Ready Fire Protection District, and 

Smartsville Fire Protection District. 

PURPOSE AND NEED 
The signatories of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) recognize the need for 

coordination and cooperation regarding operation and maintenance of public fire hydrants and 

water systems among public agencies is essential for the health, safety, and welfare of the 

communities they serve. This MOU sets forth the responsibilities of the Nevada Irrigation District 

(NID) and Agencies with respect to installation, operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement 

of public fire hydrants and in accordance with NID Rules and Regulations, Section 8 (Exhibit 

A). 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

The effectiveness of this MOU will depend on good and regular communications 
between NID and the Agencies. An open line of communication will be developed and 
maintained to ensure that the water systems and public fire hydrants are maintained in 
a reliable condition   
 

PUBLIC FIRE HYDRANTS 
For the purposes of this MOU, the term "Public Fire Hydrant" refers to all fire hydrants 

connected directly to a treated water system owned and operated by NID. Hydrants identified 

as private by NID are not considered public fire hydrants. 
 

Facilities located on the customer's side of a private fire service are not covered by this MOU, 

except that provision herein governing "Water System Integrity" shall also apply to private fire 

services. Public or private raw water fire services and all facilities connected to them are not 

covered by this MOU. 



  

MAINTENANCE 
Maintenance of public fire hydrant includes, but is not limited to clearing natural erosion and 

debris around hydrants, replacing cap and chain, lubricating cap, repainting, remarking, 

installation and repair of safety barriers, raising hydrants, and major repair and/or replacement. 

Major repair includes replacement of any parts and/or any work, which requires dismantling of 

the hydrant that requires certification to work on a potable water system. Replacement includes 

a complete removal and replacement of an existing hydrant for maintenance purposes. 

 
MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES  
NID 
• Will provide plastic colored replacement caps, approved lubricant, and paint as requested by 

Agencies 

• Will perform all repair and installation of safety barriers 

• Will perform all major repair and replacement, as determined by NID in its sole discretion. 

• Complete computer-simulated flow tests 

 

AGENCIES 
• Will clear and grade around hydrants, as necessary,  in accordance with District standards, 

as revised or modified from time to time 

• Will perform all replacement, and lubrication of caps 

• Will repaint and remark hydrants as necessary 

• Will repaint and remark barriers as necessary 

 

OPERATION 
Operation of a fire hydrant includes the physical exercising, flushing, flow testing, use for fire 

suppression, and training. 

 
OPERATION RESPONSIBILITIES  
NID may, subject to the availability of water: 

• Conduct its annual flushing program to maintain water quality (Note: Not all hydrants 

are operated during its annual flushing program). 

• Coordinate its flushing program with the respective Agencies 

• Provide to the appropriate Agency records of hydrants used for flushing, flow testing, 

or those hydrants exercised. 



  

AGENCIES 
Agencies will, subject to the availability of water: 
• Exercise, suppress fires, and train. 

• Coordinate with and report activities to NID. 

• Provide to NID records of hydrants used for flushing, estimate water usage, flow testing, or 

those hydrants exercised. 

• Provide estimate of water usage from the public fire hydrants. 

• Provide to NID records of each of the foregoing activities. 

 

WATER SYSTEM INTEGRITY 
NID operates its treated water systems under permits and certifications from the Department of 

Health Services. Conditions of the permits include water quality and system pressure. Systems 

must be operated to maintain an operating pressure at all service connections of not less than 

20 PSI. NID and the Agencies doing maintenance and operation of fire hydrants must stay in 

compliance with permit conditions. Agencies understand that operation of private fire services 

can have an adverse affect on NID's system, and will operate these private facilities in a manner 

consistent with the operation of public fire hydrants. Hydrants must be operated with reasonable 

care and in a manner that will not cause water hammer within the water system. Non-

compliance with permit conditions will result in notification and possible billing to the appropriate 

agency for repairs.   

 
TRAINING 
The Agencies may train at any location within the NID system.  During such training water system 

integrity shall be maintained.  If requested, NID will coordinate training sites desirable to both 

NID and Agencies. NID will make available any training materials it has access to for the 

Agencies training needs.  NID may, in its discretion, limit Agencies’ use of District hydrants upon 

receipt of valid customer complaints. 

 
FIRE HYDRANT STANDARDS 

Plans and Specifications: NID has developed and will maintain standard plans and specifications 

for new public fire hydrants. NID will seek comments and concurrence from Agencies for changes 

in the standards. 

 

 



  

Spacing: Spacing of new public fire hydrants in residential areas must be  a minimum of 500 

feet, or a maximum of 1000 feet, or as requested by Agency with jurisdiction and within  District 

policy.  In commercial areas, fire hydrants shall be per the applicable regulatory code.  Site-

specific conditions may warrant adjustment of these requirements. 

 
NEW PUBLIC FIRE HYDRANTS 

Application Forms: All new public fire hydrants installed by developers, individuals, or Agencies 

are required to have a standard NID "Application for Public Fire Hydrant" form, completed. This 

form requires approval from the affected Agency before finalizing the application. 

New Development: Agencies are responsible for placing and enforcing conditions for fire 

suppression and fire safety for new development. Agencies will coordinate with NID on all such 

conditions having an effect on NID and its water system. NID will cooperate with Agencies to insure 

Agencies reasonable conditions are upheld. 

 

New NID Waterlines: The Project Engineer in charge of the waterline project will contact the 

affected Agency in the preliminary design stages of the project. At that time the Agency will be 

given the opportunity to add new public fire hydrants if the request is reasonable in accordance 

with Exhibit A. 

 

Hydrant Location: Location of new public fire hydrants will be coordinated with the appropriate 

Agency by a staff member of the NID Engineering Department assigned to coordinate fire 

services. On NID projects, the Project Engineer will contact the affected Agency during the 

preliminary design stage of the project. A field meeting may be needed to determine and stake 

the location that is mutually agreeable to both parties. Public fire hydrants normally will be 

installed on the same side of the road as the pipeline. 

 
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANTS 
• Will not be eliminated without written notification with the appropriate Agency. 

 

PUBLIC FIRE HYDRANT DATABASE 
• NID and Agencies desire to maintain accurate records on the operation and 

maintenance history of each public fire hydrant. 

• NID/Agencies will coordinate through shared GIS layer database files annually. 

 



  

INDEMNITY: 
NID 
To the extent that Agencies are not otherwise immune from liability under any provision of law, 

including, but not limited to Government Code Section 850.2, NID agrees to indemnify and hold 

Agencies, its officers, employees, and volunteers, harmless from and against all claims, 

demands, and causes of action for personal injury or death or property damage, arising out of 

performance under this MOU by NID or anyone acting under NID's direction or control or on its 

behalf, and caused by negligent act or omission of NID or of anyone acting under NID's direction 

or control or on its behalf. 

 

AGENCIES 
To the extent that NID is not otherwise immune from liability under any provision of law, including, 

but not limited to Government Code Section 850.2, Agencies agree to indemnify and hold NID, 
its officers, employees, and volunteers, harmless from and against all claims, demands, and 

causes of action for personal injury or death or property damage, arising out of performance 

under this MOU by Agencies or anyone acting under Agencies' direction or control or on its behalf, 

and caused by negligent act or omission of Agencies or of anyone acting under Agencies' 

direction or control or on its behalf. 

 
TERMINATION OF MOU 
This MOU shall terminate and be of no further force or affect should NlD determine that Agencies, 

either singularly or collectively, have failed to uphold or comply with the terms and conditions, 

either by act or by lack of cooperation. NID may, at its sole discretion, carry out said act of 

termination affecting one or more Agencies without affecting the terms and Conditions of the 

MOU with respect to the remaining signatory Agencies. NID shall provide affected Agencies 

written notice of its intent to terminate this MOU. Said notice shall be delivered to the affected 

Agencies 30 days prior to taking such action. 

 

This MOU shall terminate and be of no further force or effect should Agencies unanimously 

determine that NlD has failed to uphold or comply with the terms and conditions, either by act 

or by lack of cooperation. Agencies shall provide NIO with a single written notice representing 

the intent of all Agencies collectively, to terminate the MOU. Said notice shall be delivered to 

NIO 30 days prior to taking such action. 

 

 Attached: Exhibit A – NID Rules & Regulations, Chapter 8



  

By signing this Memorandum of Understanding the parties agree to uphold its provisions. The 

parties agree that any change to this MOU must be in writing and agreed to by the parties. 

 
Nevada Irrigation District: 
 
 
 
 
               
GENERAL MANAGER    SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Grass Valley City Fire Department: 
 
 
 
 
               
MAYOR      SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Higgins Area Fire Protection District: 
 
 
 
 
               
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Nevada City Fire Department: 
 
 
 
 
               
MAYOR      SECRETARY     DATE 
 
 
 
 
 



  

Nevada County Consolidated Fire District: 
 
 
 
 
               
PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Ophir Hill Fire Protection District: 
 
 
 
 
               
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
 
 
 
Peardale Chicago Park Fire District: 
 
 
 
 
               
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Penn Valley Fire Protection District: 
 
 
 
 
               
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
 
 

 
 
 



  

 Placer County Fire Department: 
 
 
 
 
               
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAIRPERSON SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Rough & Ready Fire Protection District: 
 
 
 
 
               
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
Smartsville Fire Protection District: 
 
 
 
 
               
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD   SECRETARY     DATE 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



8-1

8Section 8 

SECTION 8 

FIRE SERVICES 

8.01 GENERAL 

Three types of fire services are available; public fire hydrants and private fire services served by 

treated water systems and public fire services served by raw water systems.  These fire services 

shall be used only for the purpose of extinguishing fires and for testing fire suppression systems. 

8.02 DISTRICT LIABILITY 

The District does not guarantee or represent that a specific or certain minimum water pressure or 

volume of water will be available through a fire service.  Fire services will be subject to the 

variations of water pressure and flow and to the temporary shutdowns required in the operation 

and maintenance of the system or any interruptions of operations in the system.  The District shall 

be held in no way responsible for and the applicant and/or local fire fighting entity must agree to 

hold the District free and harmless from injury or damage caused by the lack of water or pressure 

available to a fire service. 

8.03 LOCATION 

8.03.01 General 

All fire services will be located at a site meeting the approval of the District.  In determining if a 

location is suitable for the installation of a fire service, the District will take into consideration 

operation and maintenance requirements and other factors deemed important, at any proposed site. 

eff. 6/11/03 

NID MOU 
Exhibit A



 

8-2 

 

8.03.02 Treated Water System 

 
 (a) New Service. Faulty equipment or procedures which may be utilized by entities 

operating fire services on high pressure water mains can lead to physical injury of personnel, 

property damage, and can cause water main failures. 

 

No new public fire hydrants will be allowed on District water mains where static pressures are 150 

psi or greater.  Prior to allowing public fire hydrants on water mains where static pressures are 

between 100 and 149 psi, the District will review each request on an individual basis.  Approval 

or disapproval of each request, which will be made at the sole discretion of the District, will be 

based on consideration of such factors as size, type, and condition of water main, actual pressure, 

location of pressure-reducing stations, lower pressure water mains and other hydrants. 

 

New private fire services, located on water mains where static pressures are 100 psi or greater, will 

not be allowed unless the applicant signs an agreement acknowledging the risks involved in a high 

pressure service, and holding the District free and harmless from liability and damages relating to 

the service.  In addition, if the pressure is 150 psi or greater, the applicant will not be allowed to 

install any private hydrants or hose outlet stations on the fire service. 

 

Fire pumper connections installed with proper check valves will be allowed. 

 

eff.  10/24/90 

 

 (b) Existing Services. Existing public fire hydrants located on water mains where static 

pressures are 100 psi or greater may be eliminated when in the sole judgment of the District an 

adequate substitute water source, normally a lower pressure water main is available.  The local fire 

fighting entity, in which jurisdiction of any public fire hydrant being considered for elimination is 

located, will be consulted prior to final determination; and a written 30-day notice will be provided 

prior to the actual removal or relocation of the fire service.  All removal and re-plumbing costs 

will be absorbed by the District when such removal is the sole decision of the District. 



 

8-3 

 

eff.  5/23/90; rev. 6/11/03 

 

 8.03.03 Raw Water System 

Due to potential of water loss and operation problems encountered with fire services off of the raw 

water system, the District will only allow such services under limited situations.  If other 

alternatives, as determined by the District, are available to the fire fighting entity, no such service 

will be allowed. 

 

No fire services will be allowed off of siphons or pipelines classified as transmission, as opposed 

to distribution lines.  Locations subject to hydraulic conditions that restrict water flow will not be 

available for installation of a fire service. 

 

eff.  3/13/85 

 

8.04 PUBLIC FIRE HYDRANTS ON TREATED WATER SYSTEMS 

 

 8.04.01 General 

An application, Form 8-A, must be signed by applicant and the local fire fighting entity in which 

jurisdiction the hydrant is located and approved by District prior to the installation, relocation or 

removal of a hydrant on a District water main. 

 

The charge for the hydrant installation, relocation or removal, as set forth in these Regulations, 

shall be paid by the applicant and/or local fire fighting entity at the time the application is submitted 

to the District. 

 

Fire hydrants installed under these Regulations shall belong to the District.  The District may bear 

the expense of performing hydrant maintenance resulting from normal wear and tear when such 

conditions are reported to the District.  The District may levy a charge for fire hydrant maintenance. 



 

8-4 

  

 8.04.02 Installations 

The charge shown in Schedule 8-A will be collected for all installations and provides for 

installation of a 2 ½" x 2 ½" x 4 ½" nozzle dry barrel hydrant conforming to AWWA Specification 

C502. 

 

 8.04.03 Hydrant Removal 

The charge to remove a hydrant and discontinue the service will be as shown in Schedule 8-A. 

 

There will be no charge to remove a hydrant or stand pipe classified as less than 5 ¼-inch barrel 

diameter when the removal is done in conjunction with the installation, at the same location, of a 

new hydrant. 

 

eff. 6/11/03 

 

 8.04.04 Installation of a Hydrant Near Existing Hydrant 

If a fire hydrant is to be installed at or near a location where there is existing hydrant coverage, as 

a requirement precedent to installing the new hydrant, the District reserves the right of 

discontinuing the existing hydrant and to levy the appropriate charge as shown in Schedule 8-A. 

 

 8.04.05 Relocation of Hydrant 

The charge for the relocation of a hydrant will be the total of the charge for the hydrant elimination, 

Schedule 8-A, plus the charge for the installation of a new hydrant.  No credit will be given for 

salvaged material unless the hydrant conforms to AWWA Specification C502 and can be reused, 

with only minor reconditioning, in which case a credit will be given as shown in Schedule 8-A. 

 

Where the relocation or installation of a fire hydrant does not require a new connection to the main, 

the charge will be based on the District’s actual cost. 

  



 

8-5 

8.05 PRIVATE FIRE SERVICE ON TREATED WATER SYSTEM 
 

 8.05.01 General 

An Application, Form 8-B, must be signed by applicant and the local fire fighting entity in which 

jurisdiction the service is located, and approved the District prior to installation of the private fire 

service.  The Applicant will make the basic determination as to the size of the service; however, 

the District reserves the right to limit the size of the service allowed.  A fee to compensate the 

District for estimating the cost of the service will be collected at the time the application is 

submitted to the District.  See Schedule 8-B. 

 

After installation, the private fire service, up to and through to the outside edge of the vault, shall 

belong to the District. 
 

eff. 1/1/94; rev. 12/08/04 

 

 8.05.02 Installation 

Private fire services may be installed using three administrative processes, 1) District installed, or 

2) Applicant installed using a Conveyance Agreement or 3) Applicant installed using an Applicant 

Constructed Private Fire Service Letter Agreement. 

 

District installed private fire services shall be at the Applicant’s cost as shown in Schedule 8-B. 

 

Private fire services may be installed as a facility incidental to a water line extension being installed 

by a Developer under the provisions of a Section 10.03 Conveyance Agreement. The Applicant 

may also make arrangements to construct a private fire service to be connected to an existing water 

main by using the Section 10.03 Conveyance Agreement process in cases where the estimated 

installation costs exceed $15,000. 

 

Fire services that are not incidental to a proposed water line extension project may be installed by 

the Applicant using a private contractor under the provisions of an Applicant Constructed Private 

Fire Service Letter Agreement, example of which is shown in Form 8-D. This method governs 



 

8-6 

plans, specifications, construction, inspection, and other requirements for the Applicant and his 

contractor. These letter agreements and conveyance of the completed fire service are subject to 

approval by the General Manager. 
 
eff. 12/12/90; rev. 12/08/04 

 

 8.05.03 Service to More Than One Parcel 

As long as all the parcels involved are properly fronted by a water main, as required under Section 

10.01.02 of these Regulations, and upon the written application of all landowners, up to four 

contiguous parcels may be served by one private fire service.  

 

Property owner(s) of each parcel being served by a Private fire service must have a valid 

application on file with the District indicating their responsibility for paying all charges and 

penalties, along with their responsibility for maintaining the system beyond the private fire service. 

 

In certain instances the District, at its sole discretion, may permit or require a single parcel to have 

more than one private fire service connection. Examples include a shopping center/business center 

with varied tenant water requirements or two commercial buildings located on one parcel. 

 
 
rev. 12/08/04, rev. 03/10/10 
 

 8.05.04 Charges for Water Service 

No charge will be made for water used for extinguishing fires, but any water lost through leakage 

or for testing purposes or used in violation of these Regulations shall be paid for by the applicant 

at double the normal water consumption charges.  If unauthorized water use or leakage continues 

for more than two billing periods after notification of the water use, the service may be 

discontinued. 
 

A periodic charge, as shown in Schedules 8-C and 8-D, will be made to compensate the District 

for maintenance and the eventual replacement of the private fire service. 
 



 

8-7 

Pursuant to Section 6.04 of these Regulations, delinquent charges may be placed as a lien against 

the parcel, or all parcels benefiting from the service in the case of service to more than one parcel.  

User(s) of the service understand that the fire service may be discontinued for nonpayment of 

charges and accept all risk of such discontinuance for nonpayment. 

 

eff.  1/22/86 

 

8.06 PUBLIC FIRE SERVICE ON RAW WATER SYSTEMS 

 

 8.06.01 General 

An application, Form 8-C, must be signed by the local fire fighting entity in whose jurisdiction the 

fire service is located and approved by District prior to installation of the service. 

 

These types of fire services are subject to extreme variations in flow.  Temporary, seasonal and 

extended shutdown periods may be required in normal operation of the system.  Water delivered 

to the service may contain debris which could affect the quantity of water available to the fire 

service because of plugging or clogging. 

 

 8.06.02 District Installation 

The District will install the outlet and shutoff valve immediately adjacent to the District facility at 

the applicant’s cost. 

 

 8.06.03 Applicant Installation 

The applicant will be responsible for construction of all facilities downstream from the shutoff 

valve, including pipeline, storage sump and hydrant. 

 

 8.06.04 Maintenance Responsibilities 

District may bear the expense of performing maintenance resulting from normal wear and tear on 

its facilities when such conditions are reported to the District.  The District may levy a charge for 

maintenance.  Facilities downstream from the shutoff valve will be the responsibility of the 

applicant to maintain. 



 

8-8 

 

 8.06.05 Discontinuing Service 

The service shall be used only for extinguishing fires and no connections of any kind whatsoever, 

other than to hydrants and hose reels, shall be made or permitted to be made to the pipe(s) supplied 

by said service. 

 

Discovery of any unauthorized service or any water leakage from the applicant’s facilities will 

result in discontinuation of said fire service until corrective action is taken. 

 

 8.06.06 Charges for Water Service 

No charge will be made for water used for extinguishing fires or for periodic flushing of the service 

to remove accumulated debris. 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020         www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the City of 
Nevada City Repealing and Reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal 
Code Setting the Date for General Municipal Elections  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Ordinance 2020-XX, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City 
repealing and reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code setting the date 
for General Municipal Elections.  
 
CONTACT: Catrina Olson, City Manager 

Crystal Hodgson, City Attorney 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:   
The first reading of the Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City repealing 
and reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code setting the date for General 
Municipal Elections was read by title only at the July 23, 2020 City Council meeting.   
 
Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code provides that the date of the general 
municipal election of the city shall be the first Tuesday after the first Monday in June of each 
even-numbered year.  This June date was set years ago to comply with California Elections 
Code Section 1000 which sets established elections dates, on which dates local general 
elections must be held.  Effective on January 1, 2019, Elections Code Section 1000 was 
amended to omit the June election date option and instead, establishes election dates to be 
either (a) the first Tuesday after the first Monday in March of each year; (b) the second Tuesday 
of April in each even-numbered year; and (c) the first Tuesday after the first Monday in 
November of each year.   

The City must update the Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code provision 
establishing the City’s general municipal election dates to comply with the amended state law to 
be held on one of the three dates in Section 1000.  At the July 23, 2020 City Council meeting, 
the City Council chose the March election date option from the Elections Code and approved a 
first reading of an ordinance to change the city’s general municipal election date to the first 
Tuesday after the first Monday in March of each even-numbered year.  

The Government Code provides that Ordinances that pertain to elections are effective 
immediately after adoption. Staff recommends the Council’s second reading and approval of the 
Ordinance which will be effective immediately after its adoption.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no fiscal impact related to the proposed changes.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Repealing and Reenacting 

Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Setting the Date for General 
Municipal Elections 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ORDINANCE NO. 2020-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
REPEALING AND REENACTING SECTION 2.40.010 OF 

THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE 
SETTING THE DATE FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS  

  
 
WHEREAS, Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code sets the dates for general 
municipal elections to be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in June of each even-
numbered year;  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s June general municipal election date was based on California Elections 
Code Section 1000, which was amended by the state legislature effective January 1, 2020, to 
now require general municipal elections to be held in even-numbered years on the second 
Tuesday in April or on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in March of each year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Nevada City Municipal Code Section 
2.40.010 to change the general municipal elections to be held on the first Tuesday after the first 
Monday of March each even-numbered year, to comply with the revised Elections Code 
requirement.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City as 
follows: 
 
 

Section 1. Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code is hereby repealed 
and readopted as follows: 
 
“2.40.010 Date held. 
 
2.40.010. Date held.  
 The date of the general municipal election of the city shall be the first Tuesday after the 
first Monday in March of each even-numbered year.”  
 
 

SECTION 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
adoption pursuant to Government Code Section 36937, subdivision (a), because it relates to 
elections.   

SECTION 3.  Severability.  If any portion of this ordinance is found to be unenforceable, 
each such provision shall be severed, and all remaining portions of this ordinance shall be 
enforced to the maximum extent legally permissible. 

SECTION 4.  Certification.  The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of 
this ordinance as required by law.   

 
  



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council of Nevada City 
held this ____ day of ______, 2020 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
                                                             ____________________________ 
      Erin Minett, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Operations & Maintenance Agreement with the Department of Toxic 
Substances Control for the Providence Mine Site 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve the Operations and Maintenance 
Agreement with the Department of Toxic Substances Control and authorize the Mayor 
to sign.  
 
CONTACT:  Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:    
In 2010 and 2016, the City received funding for a Brownfields Clean-Up Grant 
administered through the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  The grants allowed 
the City to work in partnership with Sierra Streams Institute (SSI) to complete clean-up 
of mine waste on the property that the City refers to as the Environs.  This property is 
located at the end of Providence Mine Rd.  The entire property is adjacent to the City’s 
Waste Water Treatment Plant, but the work completed was on the end of the property 
adjacent to Providence Mine Rd. 
 
To complete the project a Removal Action Workplan (RAW) for the Providence Mine 
Site included the mitigation of arsenic (up to 140 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg), 
lead (up 6,700 mg/kg) and mercury (up to 4.1 mg/kg) impacted soils. The RAW 
for the adjacent Providence Quartz Mill included the mitigation of arsenic [up to 250 
mg/kg), lead (up 20,000 mg/kg) and mercury (up to 100 mg/kg) impacted soils. 
Both RAWs require an Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Plan. This plan has 
been prepared for both sites at the request of the California Department of Toxic 
Substance Control (DTSC). The purpose of this document is to present the 
procedure for the long term monitoring and maintenance of the sites. 
 
This O&M Plan has been prepared for the Providence Mine Site and the 
adjacent Providence Quartz Mill site. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  
The City is not able to do any work on the property that would disrupt the soil without 
completing a Soil Management Plan.  The City must complete annual inspections to 
ensure that the work completed through the Brownfields Clean-up Grant remains intact 
and is not disturbed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: There are annual fees due to DTSC for review of annual inspections. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Operations & Maintenance Agreement for the Providence Mine Site 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
 

  Printed on Recycled Paper 

July 27, 2020 
 
Ms. Dawn Zydonis 
Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, California 95959  
 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENENCE AGREEMENT AND PLAN FOR THE 
PROVIDENCE MINE AND PROVIDENCE QUARTZ MILL SITES, NEVADA CITY, 
CALIFORNIA, ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 005-100-087 (SITE CODE 102158) 
 
Dear Ms. Zydonis: 
 
The Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) has enclosed a copy of the 
Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement which includes the O&M Plan attached 
as Exhibit D to monitor the remedy constructed at the Providence Mine and Providence 
Quartz Mill Sites in Nevada City, California.  If you find the enclosed document 
acceptable, please sign and return the original wet signature copy to my attention.  
Upon receiving the signed copy of the document, DTSC will sign it and return a copy of 
the final O&M Agreement to you for your records.   
 
If you have any questions, please me at (916) 255-3591 or via email at 
Dean.Wright@dtsc.ca.gov.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dean Wright, P.G 
Site Evaluation and Remediation Unit 
Site Mitigation and Restoration Program 
Department of Toxic Substance Control 
 
 
Enclosure: Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Agreement 
 
cc: (see next page) 
  

mailto:Dean.Wright@dtsc.ca.gov


Ms. Dawn Zydonis  
July 27, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 

 

cc: (via email) 
 
Mr. Kyle Leach 
Sierra Streams Institute 
kleach08@gmail.com  
 
Lora Jameson, P.G. 
Chief, Site Evaluation and Remediation Unit 
Site Mitigation and Restoration Program 
Lora.Jameson@dtsc.ca.gov 
 
Steven Becker, P.G., Branch Chief 
Santa Susana Field Laboratory and Northern California Schools Branch 
Site Mitigation and Restoration Program 
Steven.Becker@dtsc.ca.gov 
 

mailto:kleach08@gmail.com
mailto:Lora.Jameson@dtsc.ca.gov
mailto:Steven.Becker@dtsc.ca.gov


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL 
 
 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 1 

In the Matter of: 
 
Providence Mine Site 
Including Mine Waste Area and Mine 
Features Area and The Quartz Mill Site 
Nevada County, California, 95959 
 
Proponent: 
Nevada City 
Parks & Recreation 
317 Broad Street 
Nevada City, California 95959 
 

Docket No. HWCA-FY19/20-149 
 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
Health and Safety Code 
25355.5 (a)(1)(C)  

 

The California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) and the City of 

Nevada City (Proponent) enter into this Operation and Maintenance Agreement 

(Agreement) for the site located at Providence Mine Road, Nevada City, Nevada 

County, California (Site) and agree as follows: 

1. Jurisdiction.  This Agreement is entered into by DTSC and Proponent 

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 25355.5(a)(1)(C) which authorizes DTSC to 

enter into an enforceable agreement to oversee the investigation and/or remediation of 

a release or threatened release of any hazardous substance or hazardous waste at or 

from the Site, and to oversee the operation and maintenance of any remedy installed at 

the Site. 

2. Installed Remedy.  A DTSC-approved remedy has been installed at the 

Providence Mine Site for the remediation of soil and the protection of surface water in 

nearby Deer Creek.  The remedy consisted of the excavation and off-site disposal of 

mine waste exceeding Hazardous Waste levels and excavation and placement of mine 

waste exceeding human health cleanup goals in a depressed area on the site.  

Excavation and re-grading of waste rock from the slope below the mine site and 

construction of a buttressing Gabion wall was implemented to lower the slope angle and 

reduce potential for erosion of mine waste into Deer Creek.  Cover soil was placed over 

the areas where mine waste was placed on-site and other areas of exposed mine 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 2 

waste.  The excavation, grading and cover soil placement was followed by erosion 

control measures including placement of straw waddles down slope of disturbed areas 

and re-vegetation with native plant species included seeding and planting of container 

plants. 

A United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) approved remedy 

has been installed at the Providence Quartz Mill Site for the remediation of soil.  The 

remedy was developed and implemented with USEPA assistance and review and 

consisted of the excavation and off-site disposal of mine waste exceeding Hazardous 

Waste levels for total lead and mercury and excavation, consolidation and placement of 

mine waste exceeding human health cleanup goals at the site.  Cover soil was placed 

over the areas where mine waste was placed on-site and other areas of exposed mine 

waste.  The excavation, grading and cover soil placement was followed by erosion 

control measures including placement of straw waddles down slope of disturbed areas 

and re-vegetation with native plant species included seeding and planting of container 

plants. 

Both the Providence Mine Site and Providence Quartz Mill Site are owned by 

Nevada City.  A site location map is attached as Exhibit A.  An assessor's parcel map 

showing the specific areas pertinent to this Agreement highlighted in yellow is attached 

as Exhibit B.  A site map or diagram showing the locations of the installed remedy is 

attached as Exhibit C. 

3. Operation and Maintenance of Installed Remedy.  Operation and 

maintenance of the installed remedy are required at the Site.  Proponent shall leave the 

installed remedy in place, and continue its operation and maintenance, until and except 

to the extent that DTSC authorizes Proponent in writing to discontinue or modify part or 

all of the installed remedy.   

4. Implementation of Operation and Maintenance Plan.  Proponent shall 

submit an Operation and Maintenance Plan to DTSC for approval.  Proponent shall fully 

implement the DTSC-approved Operation and Maintenance Plan dated July 27, 2020, 

attached as Exhibit D, including any requirements for inspections, monitoring, reporting 

and record keeping. 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 3 

5. Modification or Discontinuation of Installed System.  Proponent shall 

submit a written request for DTSC’s authorization for any modification or discontinuation 

of the Installed Remedy or any part thereof at least 60 days, to the extent feasible, prior 

to the intended date of any proposed modification or discontinuation.  Proponent may 

seek modification or discontinuation of the Installed Remedy or any part thereof if 

(a) Proponent has met the remediation objectives for the site; (b) the modification would 

better achieve the remediation objectives; (c) the Installed Remedy could not achieve 

the remediation objectives and other cleanup methods will be implemented; or (d) it has 

been demonstrated that the maximum achievable remediation has occurred.  The 

written request to DTSC shall include the reasons for the request, a detailed description 

of any work to be done or modification to be made, and a map showing the exact 

location of the proposed work.  

6. DTSC-Required Modification.  DTSC may require modification, 

replacement, or additions to the Installed Remedy if the Installed Remedy or part of 

thereof is not achieving the remediation objectives or is not protecting human health or 

the environment.  DTSC may require additional evaluations, designs and the 

construction and operation of facilities to achieve these objectives. 

7. Five-Year Review.  Proponent shall review and reevaluate the Installed 

Remedy after a period of five years from the execution of this Agreement and every five 

years thereafter.  The review and reevaluation shall be conducted to determine if human 

health and the environment are being adequately protected by the Installed Remedy.  

The five-year review report shall describe the results of all inspections, sampling 

analyses, tests and other data generated or received by Proponent and evaluate the 

adequacy of the implemented remedy in protecting human health and the environment.  

The five-year review reports must be stamped by a licensed engineer or geologist in the 

State of California.  As a result of any review work performed under this Agreement, 

DTSC may require Proponent to perform additional review work or modify the review 

work previously performed by Proponent. 

8. Quality Control/Quality Assurance (QC/QA).  All sampling and analysis 

conducted by Proponent under this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 4 

the QC/QA procedures submitted by Proponent and approved by DTSC pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

9. Financial Assurance.  Proponent must assure that sufficient funds are 

available to implement all the requirements of this Agreement and to pay DTSC’s costs 

as specified in Paragraph 10. Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Division 

20, Chapter 6.8, Section 25355.2(c)(4), because this Proponent is determined to qualify 

for a waiver as a local government entity, it is not required to provide Financial 

Assurance for performing those necessary obligations under this Agreement. If the 

property is transferred to a private party, then DTSC may require that a financial 

assurance mechanism is implemented pursuant to California Code of Regulations, 

Title 22, section 66265.143. 

10. Cost Recovery and Payment. 

10.1 Proponent is liable for all of DTSC's costs incurred in implementing this 

Agreement, including costs of overseeing the work performed by Proponent, and in 

responding to any contamination at the Site.  Cost recovery may be pursued by DTSC 

pursuant to applicable state or federal laws or common law.  DTSC will invoice 

Proponent for DTSC's costs on a quarterly basis. 

10.2 All payments made by Proponent pursuant to this Agreement shall be by 

check payable to the "Department of Toxic Substances Control" and bearing on its face 

the project code for the Site (Site # 102158-11) and the docket number of this 

Agreement.  Upon request by Proponent, DTSC may accept payments made by credit 

cards or electronic funds transfer.  Payments by check shall be sent to:  

Department of Toxic Substances Control 
Accounting Office 
1001 I Street, 21st Floor 
P.O. Box 806 
Sacramento, California 95812-0806 

A photocopy of the check shall be sent concurrently to DTSC's Project Manager.    

10.3 DTSC shall retain all cost records associated with the work performed 

under this Agreement as may be required by state law.  DTSC will make all documents 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 5 

that support DTSC's cost determination available for inspection upon request in 

accordance with the Public Records Act, Government Code section 6250 et seq.  

11. Endangerment During Implementation.   

11.1 Proponent shall notify DTSC’s Project Manager immediately upon learning 

of any condition that may pose an immediate threat to public health or safety or the 

environment.  Within seven days of the onset of such a condition, Proponent shall 

furnish a report to DTSC, signed by Proponent’s Project Manager, setting forth the 

conditions and events that occurred and the measures taken in response thereto.   

11.2 In the event DTSC determines that any activity (whether or not pursued in 

compliance with this Agreement) may pose an imminent or substantial endangerment to 

the health or safety of people on the Site or in the surrounding area or to the 

environment, DTSC may order Proponent to conduct additional activities or to stop 

further implementation of this Agreement for such period of time as may be needed to 

abate the endangerment.  DTSC may request that Proponent implement interim 

measures to address any immediate threat or imminent or substantial endangerment.  

12. Site Access.  Proponent shall provide, and/or obtain access to the Site 

and take all reasonable efforts to obtain access to offsite areas to which access is 

necessary to implement the Agreement.  Such access shall be provided to DTSC's 

employees, contractors, and consultants at all reasonable times.  Such access shall 

also be provided to any other proponent or Proponent who is in compliance with this 

Agreement for the purpose of conducting activities pursuant to this Agreement or for 

activities deemed necessary by DTSC to meet the objectives of this Agreement.  

Nothing in this paragraph is intended or shall be construed to limit in any way the right 

of entry or inspection that DTSC or any other agency may otherwise have by operation 

of law.  

13. Sampling, Data and Document Availability.  When requested by DTSC, 

Proponent shall make available for DTSC’s inspection, and shall provide copies of, all 

data and information concerning contamination at or from the Site, including technical 

records and contractual documents, sampling and monitoring information and 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 6 

photographs and maps, whether or not such data and information was developed 

pursuant to this Agreement.  For all final reports, Proponent shall submit one hard 

(paper) copy and one electronic copy with all applicable signatures and certification 

stamps as a text-readable Portable Document Formatted (pdf) file compatible with 

Adobe Acrobat or a formatted file compatible with Microsoft Word.  

14. Record Preservation.  Proponent shall retain, during the implementation of 

this Agreement and for a minimum of six years after its termination, all data, reports, 

and other documents that relate to the performance of this Agreement.  If DTSC 

requests that some or all of these documents be preserved for a longer period of time, 

Proponent shall either comply with the request, deliver the documents to DTSC, or 

permit DTSC to copy the documents at Proponent’s expense prior to destruction. 

15. Notification of Field Activities.  Proponent shall inform DTSC at least 

seven days in advance of all field activities pursuant to this Agreement and shall allow 

DTSC and its authorized representatives to take duplicates of any samples collected by 

Proponent pursuant to this Agreement. 

16. Project Managers.  Within 14 days of the effective date of this Agreement, 

DTSC and Proponent shall each designate a Project Manager and shall notify each 

other in writing of the Project Manager selected.  The Proponent's Project Manager shall 

have the technical expertise in project management, regulatory compliance, and 

hazardous substance site cleanup sufficient to fulfill his or her responsibilities.  Each 

Project Manager shall be responsible for overseeing the implementation of this 

Agreement and for designating a person to act in his/her absence.  All communications 

between DTSC and Proponent, and all notices, documents and correspondence 

concerning the activities performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be directed 

through the Project Managers.  Each party may change its Project Manager with at least 

seven days prior written notice.   

17. Proponent’s Consultant and Contractor.  All engineering work performed 

pursuant to this Agreement shall be under the direction and supervision of a registered 

professional engineer licensed in California, with expertise in hazardous substance site 

cleanup.  All geological work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be under the 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 7 

direction and supervision of a registered professional geologist licensed in California, 

with expertise in hazardous substance site cleanup.  Proponent's contractors and 

consultants shall have the technical expertise sufficient to fulfill his or her 

responsibilities.  Within 14 days of the effective date of this Agreement, Proponent shall 

notify DTSC’s Project Manager in writing of the name, title, and qualifications of the 

registered professional engineer and/or professional geologist and of any contractors or 

consultants and their personnel to be used in carrying out the work under this 

Agreement in conformance with applicable state law, including but not limited to, 

Business and Professions Code sections 6735 and 7835. 

18. DTSC Review and Approval.  All work performed pursuant to this 

Agreement is subject to DTSC’s review and approval.  If DTSC determines that any 

report, plan, schedule or other document submitted for approval pursuant to this 

Agreement fails to comply with this Agreement or fails to protect public health or safety 

or the environment, DTSC may (a) return comments to Proponent with recommended 

changes and a date by which the Proponent must submit to DTSC a revised document 

incorporating or addressing the recommended changes; or (b)  modify the document in 

consultation with Proponent and approve the document as modified.  All DTSC 

approvals and decisions made regarding submittals and notifications will be 

communicated to Proponent in writing by DTSC's Branch Chief or his/her designee.  

No informal advice, guidance, suggestions or comments by DTSC regarding reports, 

plans, specifications, schedules or any other writings by the Proponent shall be 

construed to relieve Proponent of the obligation to obtain such written approvals.  

19. Amendments.  This Agreement, including the attached Operation and 

Maintenance Plan, may be amended in writing by mutual agreement of DTSC and 

Proponent.  Such amendment shall be effective the third business day following the day 

the last party signing the amendment sends its notification of signing to the other party.  

The parties may agree to a different effective date.  

20. Incorporation of Exhibits, Plans and Reports.  All exhibits are incorporated 

into this Agreement by reference.  All plans, schedules and reports that require DTSC’s 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 8 

approval and are submitted by Proponent pursuant to this Agreement are incorporated 

in this Agreement upon DTSC’s approval.  

21. Reservation of Rights.  DTSC reserves all of its statutory and regulatory 

powers, authorities, rights, and remedies under applicable laws to protect public health 

or the environment, including the right to recover its costs incurred therefor.  Proponent 

reserves all of its statutory and regulatory rights, defenses and remedies available to 

Proponent under applicable laws. 

22. Non-Admission of Liability.  By entering into this Agreement, Proponent 

does not admit to any finding of fact or conclusion of law set forth in this Agreement or 

any fault or liability under applicable laws. 

23. Proponent Liabilities.  Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or be 

considered a covenant not to sue, release or satisfaction from liability by DTSC for any 

condition or claim arising as a result of Proponent's past, current, or future operations or 

ownership of the Site. 

24. Government Liabilities.  The State of California or DTSC shall not be liable 

for any injuries or damages to persons or property resulting from acts or omissions by 

Proponent or by related parties in carrying out activities pursuant to this Agreement, nor 

shall the State of California or DTSC be held as a party to any contract entered into by 

Proponent or its agents in carrying out the activities pursuant to this Agreement.   

25. Third Party Actions.  In the event that Proponent is a party to any suit or 

claim for damages or contribution relating to the Site to which DTSC is not a party, 

Proponent shall notify DTSC in writing within 10 days after service of the complaint in 

the third-party action.  Proponent shall pay all costs incurred by DTSC relating to such 

third-party actions, including but not limited to responding to subpoenas.   

26. California Law.  This Agreement shall be governed, performed, and 

interpreted under the laws of the State of California. 

27. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is ultimately determined not 

to be enforceable, that portion will be severed from the Agreement and the severability 

shall not affect the enforceability of the remaining provisions of the Agreement. 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 9 

28. Parties Bound.  This Agreement applies to and is binding, jointly and 

severally, upon Proponent and its agents, receivers, trustees, successors and 

assignees, and upon DTSC and any successor agency that may have responsibility for 

and jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Agreement.  Proponent shall ensure that 

its contractors, subcontractors, and agents receive a copy of this Agreement and 

comply with this Agreement.  

29. Effective Date.  The effective date of this Agreement is the date of 

signature by DTSC’s authorized representative after this Agreement is first signed by 

Proponent’s authorized representative.  Except as otherwise specified, “days” means 

calendar days. 

30. Representative Authority.  Each undersigned representative of the party to 

this Agreement certifies that she or he is fully authorized to enter into the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement and to execute and legally bind the party to this 

Agreement.  

31. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed and delivered in any 

number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed 

to be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same 

document.  

  

Date: 

 

Steven Becker, P.G., Branch Chief 
Santa Susanna Field Laboratory Branch 
Department of Toxic Substances Control 

 

 

 

  

Date: 

 

Erin Minett, Mayor 
City of Nevada City 

 

 

 



 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 10 

EXHIBIT A 
Site Location Map 

 
 

 
 



 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 11 

EXHIBIT B 
Assessors Parcel Map 

 
 

 
 



 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 12 

EXHIBIT C (Page 1 of 2) 
Remedy Location Map – Mine Site 

 

 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 13 

EXHIBIT C (Page 2 of 2) 
Remedy Location Map – Quartz Mill Site 

 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 14 

EXHIBIT D 
 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
PROVIDENCE MINE SITE AND PROVIDENCE QUARTZ MILL SITES  

NEVADA CITY, NEVADA COUNTY 
July 27, 2020 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 PURPOSE 

The Removal Action Workplan (RAW) for the Providence Mine and Providence Quartz 

Mill Sites included the mitigation of lead, arsenic and mercury but impacted soils remain 

at concentrations of up to 2,050 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) for lead, 152 mg/kg for 

mercury, and 97 mg/kg for arsenic.  These remaining concentrations require an 

Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Plan for both sites.  This plan has been prepared 

for both sites at the request of the California Department of Toxic Substance Control 

(DTSC).  The purpose of this document is to present the procedure for the long-term 

monitoring and maintenance of the sites. 

Completion of soil removal, consolidation and cover placement activities were described 

in the Removal Action Implementation and Site Closure Verification Report for the 

Providence Mine Site dated June 29, 2015 and the Site Closure Verification Report for 

the Providence Quartz Mill Site dated September 2019.  Remedial activities were 

performed as described in the RAW for the Providence Mine Site (Sierra Streams 

Institute) dated January 15, 2014 and in the RAW for the Providence Quartz Mill Site 

(Sierra Streams Institute) dated May 2018.  Cleanup activities for the Providence Mine 

Site were performed under a voluntary cleanup agreement (VCA) (HSA-VCA 11/12-

036) with DTSC.  Cleanup of the Providence Quartz Mill Site was completed with 

funding, technical assistance and review by United States Environmental Protection 

Agency (USEPA). 

This O&M Plan has been prepared for the Providence Mine Site and the adjacent 

Providence Quartz Mill site located in Nevada City, Nevada County, California. 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 15 

1.2 SITE BACKGROUND 

The sites were formerly part of a hard rock gold mine and quartz mill which operated 

between the 1860s and 1920.  Abandoned mine features identified at the Providence 

Mine Site included relic foundations, a collapsed mine shaft, and stockpiles of mine 

waste rock adjacent to Deer Creek. A Phase 2 Assessment of the Providence Mine Site 

was conducted under a USEPA Brownfields Community Wide Assessment of 

abandoned mine sites in Nevada City in 2009.  An estimate of over 4,000 cubic yards of 

mine waste rock were identified at the site, some of which have elevated metals 

concentrations exceeding regulatory standards for unrestricted land use with a limited 

volume exceeding Hazardous Waste levels. Subsequently, Nevada City entered into a 

VCA with DTSC to conduct the RAW under a Brownfields Cleanup Grant obtained from 

the USEPA. 

Abandoned mine features at the Providence Quartz Mill site included limited areas of 

processed mine tailings and terraced slopes with mine waste rock and loose concrete 

and machinery debris.  A Soil Investigation Report of the Providence Mine Site was 

conducted under a Sierra Nevada Conservancy Assessment Grant.  An estimated 400 

cubic yards of mine waste rock and processed tailings were identified at the site with 

elevated metals concentrations exceeding regulatory standards for unrestricted land 

use.  A limited volume of mine waste exceeded Hazardous Waste levels.  Preparation 

of and implementation of a RAW was performed under a Brownfields Cleanup Grant 

Nevada City obtained from the USEPA. 

Remediation at the Providence Mine Site included excavation and off-site disposal of 

mine waste exceeding Hazardous Waste levels and excavation and placement of mine 

waste exceeding human health cleanup goals in a depressed area on the site.  

Excavation and re-grading of waste rock from the slope below the mine site and 

construction of a buttressing Gabion wall was implemented to lower the slope angle and 

reduce potential for erosion of mine waste into Deer Creek.  Cover soil was placed over 

the areas where mine waste was placed on-site and other areas of exposed mine 

waste.  The excavation, grading and cover soil placement was followed by erosion 

control measures including placement of straw waddles down slope of disturbed areas 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 16 

and re-vegetation with native plant species included seeding and planting of container 

plants.  

Remediation at the Providence Quartz Mill Site included excavation and off-site disposal 

of mine waste exceeding Hazardous Waste levels for total lead and mercury and 

excavation, consolidation and placement of mine waste exceeding human health 

cleanup goals at the site.  Cover soil was placed over the areas where mine waste was 

placed on-site and other areas of exposed mine waste.  The excavation, grading and 

cover soil placement was followed by erosion control measures including placement of 

straw waddles down slope of disturbed areas and re-vegetation with native plant 

species included seeding and planting of container plants. 

Both remedies are anticipated to provide adequate protection from inhalation, ingestion, 

or dermal contact with the soils at the Sites given their typical intermittent use by hikers, 

etc. Deed restrictions will be applied to ensure this.  Nevada City will carry complete 

responsibility to maintain the remedy in a manner protective of human health and the 

environment. 

2.0 SITE LOCATION 

The approximately 1.02-acre Providence Mine Site and 0.44-acre Providence Quartz 

Mill Site are located in the northwestern portion of a 38-acre City-owned property 

identified by Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 005-100-087.  Both sites are located at the 

end of Providence Mine Road along the south side of Deer Creek in Nevada City, 

Nevada County, California.  The Providence Mine Site is located to the north and east 

of Providence Mine Road and the Providence Quartz Mill Site is located to the south 

and west of Providence Mine Road.  The site areas are more particularly described in 

Exhibit C of the Providence Mine Site O&M Agreement.  The subject parcel including 

both sites is owned by City of Nevada City (OWNER). 

3.0 MAINTENANCE OF REMEDIATED AREAS 

The Remediated Areas consists of the area with cover soil placement, and the re-

vegetated areas as depicted in Attachments 1 and 2 of the O&M Plan (Exhibit D).  

It also includes the clean fill area, which entombs the soils with the highest 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 17 

contamination and is covered by a minimum of 8 to 12-inches of clean fill as shown in 

Attachments 1 and 2.   

The only maintenance that is to be expected will be repairs to the trails, terraces and 

other open areas where there is potential for site visitors to dig below the protective soil 

cover.  In addition, periodic re-vegetation may need to occur in the vegetated areas of 

the Site if the plants are removed or disturbed by site visitors to a point where they no 

longer present a barrier to exposure.  In addition, the Gabion wall constructed as part of 

the Providence Mine remedy to protect Deer Creek will be inspected to ensure its 

continued integrity.  Under no circumstances will the soil covers, vegetative barriers, or 

Gabion wall remain in disrepair for more than 90 days following discovery of damage.  

The condition of these areas and any required maintenance will be evaluated as part of 

an annual inspection. 

4.0 FINANCIAL ASSURANCES 

Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Division 20, Chapter 6.8, Section 

25355.2(c)(4), the OWNER as a local government entity is not required to provide 

Financial Assurance.  If the property is transferred to a private party, then DTSC may 

require that a financial assurance mechanism, pursuant to California Code of 

Regulations, Title 22, section 66265.143 is implemented. 

5.0 SPECIAL SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

Inspections will be comprised of direct visual observation of the surface and slopes. No 

special safety precautions are anticipated for inspections other than common 

precautions when accessing steep slopes.  Maintenance is not expected to require the 

penetration of the Remediation System, so no special health and safety requirements 

are anticipated. 

6.0 DISCLOSURE TO PROPERTY OWNERS 

The Remediated Area is confined to space represented in Exhibit C of the O&M 

Agreement.  Nevada City will sign a deed restriction and O&M Agreement.  The deed 

restriction shall be recorded, providing constructive notice of the remedy and its location 

within the greater parcel. 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 18 

7.0 DEED RESTRICTION REQUIREMENTS 

Nevada City will be responsible for all O&M activities.  The following administrative rules 

shall apply: 

a) The Owner shall give DTSC at least 60 days of advance written notice prior to 

the intended date of any proposed modifications remediated areas of the Site. 

General maintenance of the open areas and the vegetation does not constitute 

modifications.  The written notice to DTSC shall include a detailed description of 

the work to be done or modifications to be made and a map showing the exact 

location of the proposed work and the reasons for modifications or disruption.  

No excavation work or soil disturbance activities shall occur directly in the 

remediated areas without prior approval by DTSC and the Owner.  The work plan 

shall first be reviewed by a licensed Civil Engineer. 

b) The remediated areas shall be maintained in a manner to ensure that the public 

does not come into contact with the contaminated soil.  Under no circumstances 

will the Site remedies remain in disrepair for a period longer than 90 days 

following discovery of damage.  Further, the condition of the soil caps and 

vegetation and any required maintenance shall be evaluated as part of the 

annual inspection. 

c) By January 15 of each calendar year, a competent person (defined in this plan as 

a legal resident of California, 18 years of age or older, not found to be 

incompetent in a court of law, and able to interpret the terms of the deed 

restrictions) shall file an Annual Report of Inspections for each site area.  A 

sample of the report is attached to this O&M Plan as Attachment 3.  The Annual 

Report shall be provided to the DTSC. The Annual Report, filed under penalty of 

perjury by the then current owner(s), shall certify that the property is being used 

in a manner consistent with the terms of the deed restriction and the O&M 

Agreement and describe all measures that have been taken to ensure 

compliance with the deed restriction's terms and the terms of the O&M 

Agreement.  If the property owner identifies any violation of the deed restriction 

during an annual inspection, or any other time of year, the property owner must 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 19 

within 10 days of identifying the violation, determine the identity of the party in 

violation, send a letter advising the party of the violation of the deed restriction 

and a demand that the violation cease immediately.  Such letter shall be sent by 

certified mail with return receipt and signature required.  The annual report must 

include the dates, times and names of the competent person(s) who conducted 

the annual inspection. It also shall describe how observations were performed 

that were the basis for the statements and conclusions in the annual report 

(e.g., drive by, walk in, etc.).  The annual report shall contain information on the 

integrity of the Remediation System, including soil cap, slope, and vegetation and 

provide recommendation for repairs, if necessary.  If the competent person notes 

violations, the annual report must detail the steps taken to return to compliance.  

Copies of any correspondence related to the enforcement of the deed restriction 

shall be included in the annual report but must also be sent to DTSC within ten 

days of its original transmission. 

d) After five (5) years, and every five (5) years subsequently after that, a licensed 

civil engineer or a licensed geologist shall inspect the Remediation System and 

include findings in the five-year review report.  Should remediation of the system 

be required, then within 30 calendar days after the end of the 5-year period, a 

competent person shall submit a remedial action review workplan to the DTSC 

for review and approval.  Within 60 days of the DTSC's approval of the workplan, 

the Owner shall implement the workplan and shall submit a comprehensive 

report of the results of the remedial action review.  The report shall describe the 

results of all sample analysis, tests and other data generated or received by the 

OWNER and evaluate the adequacy of the implemented remedy in protecting 

public health, safety and the environment.  Wet signed copies of the report shall 

be transmitted to the list of recipients provided in section 10 of this plan. 

e) The OWNER must assure sufficient monies are available to implement this O&M 

plan, conduct the annual and five-year reviews, and pay any cost for the upkeep 

of the Remediated Areas.  The OWNER is liable for all reasonable DTSC costs 

incurred in responding to the contamination of the site (including costs of 

overseeing response work performed by the OWNER). Cost recovery may be 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 20 

pursued by the DTSC under CERCLA, Health and Safety Code Section 25360, 

or any other applicable state or federal statute or common law.  The DTSC will 

invoice the OWNER for costs on a quarterly basis. 

f) In the event of any action or occurrence (such as a fire, earthquake, explosion, or 

human exposure to hazardous substances caused by the release or threatened 

release of a hazardous substance) during the course of the O&M Agreement, the 

OWNER shall immediately take all appropriate action to prevent, abate, or 

minimize such emergency, release or immediate threat of release and shall 

immediately notify the DTSC Project Manager and Nevada County 

Environmental Health.  The OWNER shall take such action in consultation with 

the Project Manager and in accordance with all applicable provisions of the O&M 

Agreement. Within five (5) days of the onset of such an event, the OWNER shall 

furnish a report to the DTSC, signed by the OWNER’s Project Coordinator 

(competent person in charge), setting forth the event which occurred and the 

measures taken in the response thereto.  In the event that the OWNER fails to 

take appropriate response and the DTSC takes the action instead, the OWNER 

shall be liable to the DTSC for all reasonable costs of the response action. 

8.0 CONDITIONS FOR TERMINATION  

This O&M Plan shall remain in effect until DTSC in writing authorizes termination. 

Otherwise, this O&M Plan shall remain in effect in perpetuity. 

9.0 DTSC REVIEW 

This O&M Plan is subject to review and approval by the staff of the California 

Department of Toxic Substances Control. 

10.0 LIST OF REPORT RECIPIENTS 

The following are to receive copies of all O&M reports: 

a) Nevada City Parks and Recreation, 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, California 

95959; Attention: Parks and Recreation Manager 

b) Nevada County Environmental Health Department, 950 Maidu Ave. Nevada City, 

California 95959: Attention: Director of Environmental Health 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 21 

c) Department of Toxic Substances Control, 8800 Cal Center Dr., Sacramento, 

California 95826; Attention: Chief, Site Evaluation and Remediation Unit 

 



 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 22 

Attachment 1 – Remediated Area Map – Providence Mine Site 
 

 
 
 



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 23 

Attachment 2 – Remediated Area Map – Providence Quartz Mill Site 
 

 
 



 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 24 

Attachment 3 – Annual Inspection Report 
 

NEVADA CITY – PROVIDENCE MINE SITE/PROVIDENCE QUARTZ MILL SITE 
ANNUAL INSPECTION CHECKLIST – Page 1  

(Complete one report for each Site) 
 

Site:  

Name of Person Completing Inspection:  

Address of Inspector:  

Phone number of Inspector:  

Date and Time of Inspection:  

How was inspection performed?  

  

Weather conditions:  

  
 
  YES NO 
1 Has there been any construction or repairs within the 

remediated area in the past year? 
  

2 Has the integrity of the remediated area been compromised in 
any way in the past year? 

  

3 Is there a residence, including any mobile home or factory- built 
housing constructed or installed for use as residential human 
habitation on the remediated area? 

  

4 Is there a hospital for humans on the remediated area?   
5 Is there a public or private school for persons under 18 years of 

age? 
  

6 Is there a day care center for children on the remediated area?   
7 Are any prohibited activities being conducted at the site (drilling 

for water, oil, or gas, or extraction or removal of groundwater)? 
  

8 Is there evidence of soil disturbance, including excavation? [If 
soil disturbance was noted in the vicinity of the Remediation 
System, explain in detail on attached pages the purposes of the 
excavation, when it was performed, and who at the Department 
approved the Soil Management Plan.] 

  



Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
July 2020  Page 25 

NEVADA CITY – PROVIDENCE MINE/PROVIDENCE QUARTZ MILL SITE 
ANNUAL INSPECTION CHECKLIST – PAGE 2 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
9 Have there been any violations of the Deed Restrictions? [If yes, 

describe in detail on an attached page the steps taken to return to 
compliance.] 

  

10 Have the slopes or Gabion wall been modified, or impacted by 
weather or other causes? 

  

11 Is there evidence of erosion at the remediated areas (soil cover, 
slopes, or Gabion wall)? 

  

 
 
Explain all yes responses in detail and attach to this checklist.  Reference the question 
number to the detailed explanation. 
 
Document the locations of any cracked pavement, potholes, or areas of standing water 
with drawings and/or photos.  Include information on steps taken to repair any 
deficiencies in the cover or Gabion wall. 
 
I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury under the Laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct. 
 

Signed:  Date:  
 Inspector Representative of Owner   

Title: 

   

    
Number of attached pages:   

(This form shall be retained until twenty (20) years after removal of all restrictions from 
the Property) 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
             Nevada City CA 95959 
August 12, 2020         www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Action Minutes July 23, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and approve regular City Council meeting action minutes of 
July 23, 2020.  
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The action minutes for the July 23, 2020 are attached for review. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Regular City Council Meeting action minutes July 23, 2020 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


1 

[Type here] 
 

 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
ACTION MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 23, 2020 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links 
and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the 
meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please contact Loree’ 
McCay, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 134. 
  
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
-  Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION – None 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:    Present:  Mayor Minett, Vice Mayor Strawser, Council Members Fleming and 

Fernández 
Vacant:  Council Member  

      
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    

 
PROCLAMATIONS:  
 
PRESENTATIONS:  
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS AND FUTURE 

AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
A. Subject: Fire Activity Report – June 2020 

Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

B. Subject: Notice of Completion for the Boulder Street Sidewalk and Railing project in 
Nevada City  
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-54, a Resolution for the City of Nevada 
City authorizing the Mayor to sign a Notice of Completion for the Boulder Street 
Sidewalk and Railing project in Nevada City and authorize the City Clerk to file said 
Notice of Completion with the Nevada County Recorder’s Office.   
 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


2 

[Type here] 
 

 

C. Subject: Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2020-10, an Ordinance of the 
City of Nevada City, California Imposing a Transactions and Use Tax to be 
Administered by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2020-10, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada 
City, California Imposing a Transactions and Use Tax to be administer by the 
California Department of Tax and Fee Administration. 
 

D. Subject: Second Reading and adoptions of Ordinance 2020-11, an Ordinance of the 
City of Nevada City Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 13.08 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code Regulating the City’s Sewer System 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2020-11, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada 
City Repealing and Reenacting Chapter 13.08 of the Nevada City Municipal Code 
Regulating the City’s Sewer System.  

 
E. Subject: Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2020-12, and Ordinance of 

the City of Nevada City Amending Portions of Chapter 13.20 of the Nevada City 
Municipal Code Pertaining to Flood Plain Management to Comply with FEMA’s 
Requirements 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2020-12, and Ordinance of the City of Nevada 
City Amending Portions of Chapter13.20 of the Nevada City Municipal Code 
pertaining to Flood Plain Management to comply with FEMA’s requirements. 
 

F. Subject: Second reading and adoption of Ordinance 2020-13 an Ordinance of the 
City of Nevada City Amending Nevada City Municipal Code Sections 17.72.026 and 
17.72.027 in Order to Update the City’s Accessory Dwelling Unit Regulations 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2020-13, and Ordinance of the City of 
Nevada City Amending the Nevada City Municipal Code Sections 17.72.026 and 
17.72.027 in order to update the City’s Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Ordinance, 
pertaining to height limits of ADUs within the multifamily zoning designation. 
 

G. Subject: Letter of Support for US Forest Service Lease at the Nevada City Tech 
Center 
Recommendation: Review the letter of support for the US Forest Service lease 
property at 300 Providence Mine Road at the Nevada City Tech Center and 
authorize the City Council to sign. 

 
H. Subject: Commitment of Auction Funds  

Recommendation: Commit the $2,267.56 raised with the Pioneer Park Online 
Auction to projects to be completed within Pioneer Park. 

 
I. Subject: Action Minutes July 8, 2020 Special City Council Meeting   

Recommendation: Review and approve Special City Council Meeting action 
minutes of July 8, 2020. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Fleming to approve items 3A, 3B, 3D – 3F and 3H – 
3I as presented.  Items 3C and 3G were pulled for discussion   
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
Action: After discussion motion by Strawser, seconded by Fleming to approve item 3C as 
presented.   
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 



3 

[Type here] 
 

 

Action: After discussion motion by Minett, seconded by Fernández to approve items 3G as 
presented.   
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
 
4. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 

A. Subject: LAFCo Nevada City Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update  
Recommendation: Provide staff direction for any formal comments City Council 
would like to provide to LAFCo regarding the draft Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) prepared for the Nevada City Sphere of Influence (SOI) update to be provided 
in a letter from the Mayor. 

Action: Staff was directed to bring this item back on the August 12, 2020 agenda for formal 
comments to allow time for new Council members Fleming and Fernández to more thoroughly 
review the EIR for the Nevada City SOI and work with SR Jones, Executive Director of Nevada 
County LAFCo with any questions they may have. 
 

B. Subject: Proposition 68 – Per Capita Program and State Parks Program Update 
Recommendation: Provide staff direction to complete applications for two 
Proposition 68 programs and provide input on priority projects. 

Action: Council directed staff move forward with completing applications for two Proposition 68 
programs with priority projects indicated in the report by Dawn Zydonis, Parks and Recreation 
Manager. 
 

C. Subject: Resolution 2020-55, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City Repealing Resolution No. 2020-36 Suspending the Imposition and Collection of 
Parking Fees at City Parking Meters During COVID-19 Local Emergency 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-55, a Resolution of the City Council of the 
City of Nevada City repealing Resolution No. 2020-36 suspending the imposition 
and collection of parking fees at city parking meters during the Covid-19 local 
emergency. 

Action: Motion by Strawser, seconded by Fernández to pass Resolution 2020-55, a 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Nevada City repealing Resolution No. 2020-36 
suspending the imposition and collection of parking fees at city parking meters during the 
Covid-19 local emergency.  .   
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
 

D. Subject: Monthly Update on City Council Six-Month Strategic Objectives and 
Discuss Upcoming Strategic Planning Set for August 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Review current Strategic Plan goals and objectives and provide 
staff direction as to whether to move forward with the Strategic Planning Retreat 
scheduled for August 24, 2020. 

Action: No action, receive and file.  Staff was directed to create a plan to move forward in 
holding the August 24, 2020 Strategic Planning Retreat. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

[Type here] 
 

 

E. Subject: Sugarloaf Clean-up Update 
Recommendation: Receive and file the update on the collaborative effort by 
Nevada City, Nevada County Health and Human Services, Nevada County Sheriff’s 
Office and other community organizations to address the homeless encampments 
on Sugarloaf Mountain with particular concern around fire danger. 

Action: No action, receive and file. 
 

F. Subject: Commercial and Residential Back-up Generators  
Recommendation: Provide staff direction to prepare and present an Ordinance 
option to regulate commercial and residential generators in a manner that provides 
objective standards for administrative processing. 

Action: Council provided staff direction to move forward with preparing an Ordinance option to 
regulate commercial and residential generators in a manner that provides objective standards 
for administrative processing.   
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
6. OLD BUSINESS:   
 
7. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City Repealing 
and Reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code Setting the 
Date for General Municipal Elections  
Recommendation: Waive reading of Ordinance, read title only and introduce for 
first reading: Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City repealing 
and reenacting Section 2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code setting the date 
for General Municipal Elections. 

Action: This matter was moved to item B in new business.  Motion by Fleming, seconded by 
Strawser to waive reading of Ordinance, read title only and introduce for first reading: 
Ordinance 2020-14, an Ordinance of the City of Nevada City repealing and reenacting Section 
2.40.010 of the Nevada City Municipal Code setting the date for General Municipal Elections for 
the month of March.   
(Approved 4-0, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Minett, Strawser, Fleming and Fernández) 
 

B. Subject: Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City, California Appointing a Member to Fill the Office of City Council Member Until 
Election can be Held to Select a Permanent City Council Member to Fill Reinette 
Senum’s Vacant Seat Caused by her Resignation 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2020-XX, a Resolution of the City Council of 
the City of Nevada City, California appointing a member to fill the office of City 
Council Member until election can be held to select a permanent City Council 
Member to fill Reinette Senum’s vacant seat caused by her resignation. 

Action: This matter was moved to item A in new business.  The Resolution did not pass.  
Motion by Fleming, seconded by Strawser to keep the open Council seat vacant until the 
election. 
(Approved 3-1, Vacancy 1, Roll call votes ayes; Strawser, Fleming and Fernández, noes; 
Minett) 
 



5 

[Type here] 
 

 

8. CORRESPONDENCE: 
  
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
 
10. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT:  A verbal report was provided. 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT:  - 10:18 PM 
                 
 
 
 
AYES:    
  
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT:     
 
ATTEST: 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Erin Minett, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
             Nevada City CA 95959 
August 12, 2020         www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:   Memorandum of Understanding for Nevada County CARES Act Funding   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Provide staff direction as to the acceptance, authorizing the City 
Manager to sign, or denial of the memorandum of understanding (MOU) for Nevada County 
CARES Act funding.  
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
The following text is from a Nevada County Board of Supervisors staff report from the July 28, 
2020 meeting: 
 

On March 10, 2020 the Nevada County Board of Supervisors approved Resolution 20-
062 proclaiming a local emergency in Nevada County due to rapid spread of COVID-19 
and its threat to Nevada County.  On March 19, 2020, the Governor of California issued 
a statewide order requiring all Californians to remain in at their home or place of 
residence, except as necessary to carry out essential activities. 

 
In response to the COVID-19 public health and economic crisis throughout the country, 
the federal government enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 
(“CARES Act”) on March 27, 2020. The CARES Act included a $2 trillion-dollar 
economic relief package with approximately $150 billion dollars of Coronavirus Relief 
Fund (CRF) monies directed at States, local governments, and tribal entities for 
economic and disaster relief. On June 29, 2020, the Governor of California signed into 
law the Budget Act of 2020, which allocated an additional $1.3 billion of State CRF 
monies, including $10 million allocated to Nevada County to be distributed over six 
months, in equal installments. In addition to allocations to counties, cities were provided 
separate allocations, including approximate amounts of $50,000 to the City of Nevada 
City, $159,000 to the City of Grass Valley, and $200,000 to the Town of Truckee… 

 
…On July 14, 2020 the Nevada County Board of Supervisors passed and adopted 
Resolution 20-319, approving the County’s CRF Expenditure plan which included 
allocating $250,000-$500,000 to municipal police departments. This funding for the 
municipal police departments within Nevada County, in coordination with the Nevada 
County Sheriff’s Office, is intended to create enhanced collaborative alignment to assist 
in complying with state health orders and other state and federal funding requirements, 
consistent with the Certification requirements under the Budget Act of 2020, outlined 
above.  
 
MOU language has been drafted and is under review by County Counsel and the City 
and Town attorneys. The final funding amount for each City and Town is under 
negotiation and will not exceed the total allocated amount approved by the Board of 
Supervisors on July 14, 2020. With the Board’s approval of this Resolution, the CEO will 
finalize and sign the MOUs with the Cities and Town as soon as possible in order to 
expend the funds by the deadline of December 30, 2020. 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


The proposed memorandum of understanding (MOU) is attached for review.  In summary, the 
MOU requires that the County’s CARES Act funding be allocated specifically to the Police 
Department budget and requires that the Nevada City Police Department (NCPD) will: 
 

“Collaborate with the county Sheriff and other public safety entities to ensure that the 
community in the jurisdiction complies with orders in section 3.a. including providing 
education and taking enforcement actions as needed 

 
 
The funding allocation is tied to the approximately cost of one full-time equivalent cost of a police 
officer.  For NCPD, that cost is approximately $125,000 after benefits, but without overtime costs. 
 
To date, NCPD has been successful in allocating existing resources to COVID-19 response.  In 
addition to extensive time being spent related to administrative support and collaboration efforts, 
NCPD immediately applied dedicated support to COVID-19 related efforts by assigning the Code 
Compliance Officer, Amanda Kyser to local COVID-19 related impacts as well as provided 
support and education to businesses during retail shutdown and reopening.  NCPD has provided 
this dedicated resource to COVID-19 response and, absent other unforeseen circumstances, 
plans to keep staff assigned to this function until the need subsides.  The Police Department 
believes it can continue to provide these supports absent additional funding. 
 
Generally, NCPD staff has worked in partnership with Nevada County departments to gain 
compliance of businesses through education, rather than enforcement.  It is the City’s belief that 
the near-term goals of social-responsibility and community health as well as forge strong long-
term relationships with businesses and community members can continue to be accomplished 
via education rather than enforcement models. 
 
It would be very difficult to hire a full-time, sworn officer dedicated to COVID order enforcement, 
because the funds must be expended by the end of the calendar year, leaving only four and a 
half months to fulfill the MOU’s obligations.  Also, there may not be enough enforcement activity 
to warrant a full-time officer. Further, the City’s projected budget is not equipped to continue 
funding the officer’s salary, so it would most likely be a temporary position, making it even more 
difficult to fill.   
 
If funding were accepted from the County of Nevada, dollars would be allocated to the staff work 
already completed as well as to support the continued efforts consistent with the methods and 
educational approach already employed.  With the transition of downtown due to the outdoor 
dining directive from the State, the Police Department would continue using non-sworn liaison 
services to that area as well as overtime-based Police presence. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:   Not applicable.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Neutral. Revenue to the NCPD budget for staff expenses allocated to 
COVID-19 response. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Special City Council Meeting action minutes July 23, 2020 



 

1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 
NEVADA AND THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY PERTAINING TO 

ENFORCEMENT OF THE STATE ORDER RELATED TO COVID-19 
PROTECTIONS 

 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into on the ____ day of 
_____________ 2020, by and between the County of Nevada County (“County”) 
and the City of Nevada City (“City”), collectively, the “Parties”. 

 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor of the State of California 

Proclaimed a State of Emergency to exist in California due to the current and 
potential impacts caused by COVID-19 and to combat the spread of COVID-19 
broadly; and 

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the Nevada County Board of Supervisors 
approved Resolution 20-062, proclaiming a local emergency in Nevada County due 
to the rapid spread of COVID-19 and threat it posed to Nevada County; and 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, the Governor of California issued a 
statewide order requiring all Californians to remain at their home or place of 
residence, except as necessary to carry out essential activities; and 

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 public health 
and economic crisis throughout the Country, the federal government enacted the 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) to addresses 
the economic impacts caused by COVID-19, which included a $2 trillion economic 
relief package, with approximately $150 billion of Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 
monies directed at States, local governments, and Tribal entities for economic and 
disaster relief; and 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 2020, Governor Newsom signed into law the Budget 
Act of 2020, which allocated an additional $1.3 billion of State CRF monies, 
including $10 million to Nevada County to be distributed over six months, in equal 
installments; and 

WHEREAS, as a requirement of receiving CRF funding, on June 30, 2020, 
the County Chief Executive Officer designee completed the Certification for Receipt 
of Funds pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Control Section 11.90 
of the Budget Act of 2020, regarding the expenditure of CRF funds in accordance 
with the Certification and State and Federal requirements; and  

 



 

2 
 

WHEREAS, these Certification requirements under the Budget Act of 2020 
require that the CFR funds be used to cover only those costs that (1) are necessary 
expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to COVID-
19; (2) were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 
27, 2020, for the State or local government; and (3) were incurred during the period 
that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020. Also required as 
condition of receipt of funds are adherence to federal and state health guidance and 
orders; use of funds as stated in Control Section 11.90 of the Budget Act of 2020; 
submission to the State of various reports on expenditures and return of unspent 
funds; and retention of records to support eligible expenses.    

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2020, the Nevada County Board of Supervisors 
passed Resolution 20-319, thereby approving the County’s CRF Expenditure Plan, 
which included allocating $250,000-$500,000 to municipal police departments; and 

WHEREAS, the funding for the municipal police departments within Nevada 
County, in coordination with the Nevada County Sheriff’s Office, is intended to 
create enhanced collaborative alignment to assist in complying with state health 
orders and other state and federal funding requirements, consistent with the 
Certification requirements under the Budget Act of 2020, outlined above; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Memorandum of 
Understanding to outline their respective understandings and responsibilities 
regarding the allocation and expenditure of State CRF funding identified herein. 

 
I. PURPOSE 
This MOU delineates the understandings of the Parties relating to the allocation of 
CRF funding to City for use by the City of Nevada City Police Department in 
accordance with the Certification for Receipt of Funds pursuant to paragraph (2) or 
(3) of subdivision (d) of Control Section 11.90 of the Budget Act of 2020, and all 
other State and Federal requirements (“Certification for Receipt of Funds”). 
 
II. TERM  

The term of this MOU shall commence as of ____________, 2020 and will remain 
in effect until ______________, unless extended by mutual written agreement of the 
Parties, or terminated sooner pursuant to the termination provisions below. 
 
III. UNDERSTANDINGS OF THE PARTIES 

A.  County: 

1. The County will pass $100K? of CARES Act funds (“Funds”) to the City 
on behalf of the City of Nevada City Police Department.  

B. City: 

1. City shall accept the Funds on behalf of the City of Nevada City Police 



 

3 
 

Department. 

 2. City agrees that the use of the Funds will be in strict compliance with 
the Certification for Receipt of Funds requirements, including reimbursement 
for costs incurred that: 

a. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health 
emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 

b. Were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of 
March 27, 2020 for the City of Nevada City. 

c. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020 and ends 
on December 30, 2020. 

  
 3. The City further agrees to do all of the following as a condition of 

receipt of Funds: 

a.  Adhere to: US Treasury Department Coronavirus Relief Fund 
guidance; the state’s directives as defined in gubernatorial Executive 
Order N-33-20, any subsequent Executive Orders or statutes; all 
California Department of Public Health orders, directives, and guidance in 
response to COVID-19 emergency; and related local Public Health orders. 

b.  Collaborate with the county Sheriff and other public safety entities to 
ensure that the community in the jurisdiction complies with orders in 
section 3.a. including providing education and taking enforcement actions 
as needed. 

c.  Use the funds in accordance with all applicable provisions of 
subdivision (d) of Control Section 11.90 of the Budget Act of 2020. 

d. Report on expenditures by December 1, 2020. Reporting shall include 
a summary of all expenditures to date as well as projected expenditures 
through December 30, 2020. Any funds that are unspent by December 30, 
2020 must be returned to the County.  

e. Retain records to support reported COVID-19 eligible expenditures and 
participate in audits as outlined by the federal government and State. 

 
 

C.  County and City 

1. The Parties will work cooperatively in the carrying out of their respective 
roles and responsibilities in furtherance of this MOU.  In the event of a 
conflict over the interpretation or implementation of the understandings 
set forth herein, the Parties agreed to meet in good faith to resolve the 
conflict.    
 
2. The Parties understand and agree that the County’s obligations herein 



 

4 
 

are limited to the pass-through of Funds to City.  City shall be responsible 
for monitoring and complying with all state and federal laws, regulations, 
and limitations on the use of Funds, and agrees to take any/all necessary 
remedial action to ensure Funds are used accordingly. 

 
IV. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County and its officers, 
officials, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all liabilities, 
claims, demands, damages, losses and expenses (including, without 
limitation, defense costs and attorney fees of litigation) which result from the 
negligent act, willful misconduct, or error or omission of the City, related to 
this MOU, except such loss or damage which was caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of County or its officers, officials, employees, 
agents and volunteers. These indemnification provisions shall survive the 
termination of this MOU. 
 

V. NOTICES 

All notices to be provided under this MOU shall be in writing and service by 
first-class mail and shall be deemed received by the Parties below on the 
fifth (5th) day following the date of mailing, or the earlier date of personal 
service, as the case may be. 

VI. TERMINATION 

Either party may terminate this MOU with or without cause by providing a 
minimum of thirty (30) days’ notice to the other pursuant to the Notice 
provisions in Section V above.  Termination of this MOU shall not relieve City 
of its obligations to comply with the Certification for Receipt of Funds 
requirements outlined above with regard to Funds spent pursuant to this 
MOU, and City agrees to return to County any unused Funds at time of 
termination.  

VII. AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

The Parties to this MOU represent that the undersigned individuals 
executing this MOU are fully authorized to execute and deliver this MOU on 
behalf of their respective Party. 
 

VIII. ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING 

This MOU represents the entire understanding of the Parties, and no 
representations have been made or relied upon except as set forth herein. 



 

5 
 

 
 
County of Nevada    City of Nevada City 
 
_________________________  ______________________________ 
Alison Lehman, CEO    Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
Date:_________________  Date:________________ 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City CA 95959 
August 12, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
TITLE:  Update Regarding the Strategic Planning Retreat Set for August 24, 2020 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Provide staff direction, to bring back to Council at the September 23, 2020 
meeting, an item to discuss setting a new Strategic Planning Retreat date for October 2020. 

 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
On February 10, 2020, the City Council, Planning Commission and executive staff held a planning 
retreat in the City Hall Council Chambers, facilitated by Marilyn M. Snider. The focus retreat included 
the review of the three-year goals for the organization and identification of the six-month strategic 
objectives. 
 
The four goals not in priority order: 

• Improve Citywide infrastructure with emphasis on increased parking; 
• Improve Citywide technology; 
• Improve and manage fiscal stability and sustainability; 
• Improve safety and security of the City residents and visitors; and 
• Enhance long-term planning documents (this was a prior goal and was removed). 

 
The attendees then reviewed the above-mentioned goals and developed 19 specific six-month 
strategic objectives (as outlined in the attached grid), specific performance measures and a follow-up 
process to ensure progress is monitored.   

 
A date was set on February 10, 2020 to have a 6 month Strategic Planning Retreat on August 24, 2020.  
At the July 23, 2020 Council provided staff direction to go forward with maintaining an August 24, 2020 
Strategic Planning Retreat.  After further review, with facilitator Marilyn Snyder, as to how the format of 
the retreat would look, if we were not to meet in person, it was concluded by the facilitator that she 
could not be prepared by August 24, 2020 to run a Strategic Planning Retreat via Zoom. It was further 
deduced that if not able to hold the retreat in person that it may not be as effective. 
 
Staff with agreement from Marilyn Snyder that it would be most advantageous to postpone the August 
24, 2020 Strategic Planning Retreat until October 2020 with the hopes that we may be able to meet in 
the Nevada City Council Chambers.  Staff recommends bringing this item back for discussion at the 
secon City Council meeting in September to discuss possible dates for an October retreat.  

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 

 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 

 
ATTACHMENT:   None. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL      City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City CA 95959 
August 12, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  LAFCo Nevada City Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Provide staff direction for any formal comments City Council would like to 
provide to LAFCo regarding the draft EIR prepared for the Nevada City Sphere Of Influence (SOI) 
Update to be provided in a letter from the Mayor. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:    
At the June 27, 2018  meeting Council was advised of an updated scope of work by LAFCo’s 
consultant, Kimley Horn to prepare an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) necessary for the Nevada City Sphere of Influence 
(SOI) Update.   
 
At the July 23, 2020 meeting, staff reported to Council on LAFCo’s release of a Notice of 
Availability (NOA) for the draft EIR on June 19, 2020 commencing a 45-day public review period 
that ends on August 3, 2020. However LAFCo Executive Officer SR Jones, informed Council that 
LAFCo would consider the draft EIR at their next meeting on August 20 th and  comments could 
come in up until that date.  The attached NOA includes a summary of the determined 
environmental impacts associated with the Sphere of Influence update. The draft EIR in its 
entirety can be reviewed at the LAFCo website at the following link: 
https://www.mynevadacounty.com/3036/Nevada-City-Sphere-Update 
 
With the understanding that comments would be accepted up until the August 20, 2020 LAFCo 
meeting, Council continued this item to the current meeting to allow them more time to review the 
draft EIR and meet with City and LAFCo staff.  
 
PLANNNG COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
At their meeting on July 16, 2020 the Planning Commission recommended that City Council 
reiterate the City’s preference to retain the existing Sphere of Influence. The existing SOI is 
represented in the draft EIR as the “City Recommended Alternative.” It should be noted that 
LAFCo has sole authority in  determining the SOI limit and they previously identified the map 
represented in the dEIR as the “LAFCo/City Consensus Alternative” as the “Preferred Alternative” 
for the purpose of evaluation under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The 
planning commission did not make any recommendation regarding the adequacy of the dEIR 
analysis.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Nevada LAFCo is the lead agency for the Nevada City 
SOI update Environmental Impact Report (EIR). Nevada City is a commenting agency and may 
provide comments on the report to be presented to LAFCo.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Cost of preparation of the EIR was estimated to be $77,935. The City 
contributes funds to the Nevada LAFCo operating budget, along with other County jurisdictions 
and special districts. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Notice of Availability (NOA): Nevada City Sphere Update draft EIR 
 Nevada St. / Willow Valley Rd. Neighborhood Association position packet 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
https://www.mynevadacounty.com/3036/Nevada-City-Sphere-Update


 

 
 

LAFCo  ∙∙  950 Maidu Avenue  ∙ ∙ Nevada City  ∙∙  CA  ∙   95959  ∙∙  530-265-7180 

 

 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY 
 

Date:  June 19, 2020 

To: Responsible Agencies, Organizations, and Interested Parties 

From: Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission  

Contact:  Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission  

SR Jones, LAFCo Executive Officer 

950 Maidu Avenue,  

Nevada City, CA 95959 

 

Subject: Sphere of Influence Plan for the City of Nevada City Environmental Impact Report 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo), as Lead 

Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), has prepared a Draft Environmental Impact 

Report (EIR) for the proposed update to the Sphere of Influence Plan for the City of Nevada City (proposed 

project). A 45-day public review period will commence June 19, 2020 and end August 3, 2020. 

Project Title: Sphere of Influence Plan Update for the City of Nevada City Environmental Impact Report. 

Project Location: The project proposed would update the Sphere of Influence (SOI) of the City of Nevada 

City. The proposed project would occur within the City’s current SOI covering an area of approximately 2,702 

acres. The SOI area is largely characterized by rural and low density residential development, undeveloped 

parcels, limited commercial development, and generally steep and hilly forested terrain. Access to and 

within the SOI project area is provided via State Route (SR-20\49), Highway (Hwy-20), major collector 

roadways including Banner Lava Cap Road, Gracie Road, Red Dog Road, Willow Valley Road, Lewis Road, Old 

Downieville Hwy and Champion Mine Road. The area also contains many local and private roads that provide 

direct access through the area. 

Project Description: The proposed project consists of an update the existing Nevada City SOI area. The 

proposed project would reduce the size of the existing SOI area to omit lands that are unlikely to require 

municipal services and to promote orderly development and logicial future extensions of City infrastructure. 

The proposed project includes four priority annexation areas (Annexation Area #1, Annexation Area #2, 

Annexation area #3, and Annexation Area #4) as well as six areas with significant development potential 

(Providence Mine East, Hurst Ranch, HEW Building, Manzanita Diggins, Highway 49 Planned Development 

Area, and Gracie/Gold Flats) that have reasonable access to water and wastewater service.  Due to the 

presence or proximity to services, these properties are considered more likely to be annexed to the City. 



  
Nevada City Sphere of Influence Update EIR – Notice of Availability  

Page 2 
 

 

 

The five areas that would be removed from the SOI would be designated by LAFCo as “Areas of Interest” to 

the City. The proposed project does not include any development or propose any plans for development.  

The proposed project would only result in the adjustment of the City’s SOI. 

Significant Environmental Impacts: The Draft EIR has determined that the proposed project would result in 

any significant and unavoidable associated with Wildfire and Greenhouse Gas. Other imapcts that were 

initially found to be potentially significant would be mitigated to less than significant. 

Public Hearing: The Nevada County Local Agency Formation Commission will hold a public hearing to gather 

public input on the Draft EIR and provide the public with an opportunity to comment in addition to the 

standard 45 day review period (discussed below). The hearing will be on Thursday, August 20, 2020 at 9:30 

A.M., or as soon thereafter as possible, and presented from the Nevada County LAFCo, 950 Maidu Avenue, 

Nevada City, CA 95959.  Because of the ongoing COVID-19 restrictions and to enable public participation 

this meeting is planned to be held using Zoom, which is available at (https://zoom.us/).  

Public Review Period: In accordance with CEQA, should you or your organization have any comments on 

the Draft EIR, it is requested to provide a written response to this notice within the public review period, 

which begins on Friday, June 19, 2020 and ends on Monday August 3, 2020. The Draft EIR and related 

documents can be reviewed at the Nevada City City Hall at 317 West Broad Street and the Nevada County 

LAFCo offices at 950 Maidu Avenue in the Nevada City. The Draft EIR also is available for review on the 

Nevada County LAFCo website at https://www.mynevadacounty.com/907/Local-Agency-Formation-
Commission-LAFCo. 

If you wish to comment, please include: “Nevada City SOI Update Draft EIR Comments” in the subject line 

and send comments via U.S. mail or e-mail to: 

 

Nevada County Local Agency Formassion Commission 
Attn: SR Jones – Executive Officer 

950 Maidu Avenue, Nevada City, CA 95959 
(530) 265-7180 

lafco@co.nevada.ca.us 

 

PLEASE NOTE: 

 

To ensure delivery via e-mail, please do not send attachments larger than 1 MB.  Nevada County LAFCo 

does not accept responsibility for any attachments rejected by our e-mail system due to file size. 

 

Hours of public access at the Nevada County LAFCo office are 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday – Friday.  

During the COVID-19 crisis, we ask that you contact the office to make an appointment. 

 

Hand delivered comments will only be accepted at the Nevada County LAFCo offices during the listed 

hours. 

 

 

https://www.mynevadacounty.com/907/Local-Agency-Formation-Commission-LAFCo
https://www.mynevadacounty.com/907/Local-Agency-Formation-Commission-LAFCo
mailto:(707)%20649-
mailto:lafco@co.nevada.ca.us
















































































































































































































REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
AUGUST 12, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Recommended Application of a City-Sponsored Annexation of 
Approximately 35.2 Acres (Including 16.3 Acres of Public Right-of-Way Area), at 
Three Distinct Areas Within the City Sphere of Influence; Recommended Pre-
Zoning of the Annexation Territory and Recommended General Plan Amendment 
For One 1.5 Acre Parcel to Accommodate the Existing Commercial Child Care 
Use of the Property 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve Resolution 2020-XX (attachment 4) authorizing staff to file a Notice of 
Exemption for the pre-zoning and annexation of the 35.2 acres being considered 
for annexation. 

2. Authorize the first reading of Ordinance 2020-XX  (attachment 5) relating to the 
General Plan Amendment and pre-zoning of the 35.2 acres of Nevada County 
territory to be annexed into the City of Nevada City.  

3. Approve Resolution 2020-XX, initiating an annexation application with LAFCo for 
all that territory delineated in the map known as Annexation #56 (Exhibit B of 
Resolution). 

 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
  Bryan McAlister, City Engineer 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
On August 28, 2019, the City Council approved a Resolution of Intent (Resolution 2019-
53) to proceed with the process of pre-zoning the above properties to accompany an 
annexation request that the City will ultimately file with the Nevada County Local Area 
Formation Commission (LAFCo).  One additional property is being added to the current 
annexation proposal  at that property owner’s request.  The following table provides the 
reasons the following properties are desirable for annexation within city limits: 

• Area A (3.73 acre area along Gold Flat Road) 
o 10709 Gold Flat Road (037-050-035), property owner on record: DUNN J 

LINDA TRSTE 
o 10681 Gold Flat Road (037-060-006), property owner on record: WALKER 

CLYDE E ETAL 
o 10643 Gold Flat Road (037-060-075), property owner on record: 

BEARDSLEY WILLIAM G ETAL 
o 10613 Gold Flat Road (037-060-009), property owner on record: BARBER 

AMY J TRSTE ETAL 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


o 10597 Gold Flat Road (037-060-010), property owner on record: 
ANGELINI FRED & ANNE C TRSTES 

o 10549 Gold Flat Road (037-060-011), property owner on record: 2018 
ANGELINI IRREVOCABLE TRUST 

• Area B (27.64 acres at Gold Flat Road and State Highway 49) 
o 10310 Granholm Lane (037-230-037), property owner on record: STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA 
o 10266 Granholm Lane (035-230-036) property owner on record: STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA 
o 10057 Gold Flat Road (035-230-035), property owner on record: STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA, DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS-MAINTENANCE 
o 10114 Granholm Lane (035-230-033), property owner on record: 

APPLEGATE E MARK TRSTE 
• Area C (3.83 acres along Bourbon Hill Road)  

o 11667 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-036), property owner on record: 
THOMPSON WENDY J TRSTE ETAL 

o 11629 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-067), property owner on record: 
CHRISTINE & KENNETH KRUGLER LIVING TRUST 

o  11615 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-068), property owner on record: 
DUNBAR BRION L & ALICE T TRSTES 

o 11577 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-038), property owner on record: 
DUNBAR BRION L & ALICE T TRSTES 

o 11595 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-039), property owner on record: 
EBERHART ALLAN R TRSTE & SWEETSER ALISON R TRSTE 

o  11567 and 11569 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-040), property owner on 
record: TOBEY VICKIE TRSTE 

o 11693 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-035), property owner on record: 
DENNIS JULIE A 

 
Prior to annexation, the City is required to pre-zone the territory to be annexed in a 
manner that is consistent with the City’s General Plan. At their July 16, 2020 meeting the 
Planning Commission made a recommendation to the City Council to approve the 
annexation and the proposed pre-zoning as provided in your staff report (attachment 5).    
 
PRE-ZONING PROPOSAL: The present General Plan Land Use designations were 
adopted by City Council in March 1986 as part of the General Plan update, which included 
adoption of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The General Plan Update included 
those properties outside City limits but within the potential annexation area, known as the 
Sphere of Influence (SOI). The City’s General Plan Designations are intended to provide 
a general framework for the land use type the City prefers in a given area. With existing 



land uses and General Plan designations in mind, staff is recommending pre-zoning, and 
a General Plan amendment for one parcel for the subject properties as provided below 
(see attachment 3 for City zoning descriptions):   

Property 

City GP 
Designation

* 
Current 

Use 

Pre-zoning 
Recommendation*

* 

GP Amendment 
Recommendatio

n 
(where 

applicable)* 
Acreag

e 
Are
a A 

10709 
Gold Flat 
Road 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.63 

10681 
Gold Flat 
Road: 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.75 

10643 
Gold Flat 
Road 
 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.67 

10613 
Gold Flat 
Road 

E Vacant RR-AN  0.16 

10597 
Gold Flat 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.43 

10549 
Gold Flat 
Road 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.89 

Are
a 
B 

10310 
Granhol
m Lane 

SF Vacant 
(State-
owned) 

P-PD-AN  0.71 

10266 
Granhol
m Lane 

P Vacant 
(State-
owned) 

P-PD-AN  1.10 

10057 
Gold Flat 
Road 

P Caltrans 
Maintenanc

e Yard 

P-SC-AN  8.03 

10114 
Granhol
m Lane 

SF Commercial 
Child Care 

Facility 

LI-SC-AN Light Industrial 
(LI) 

1.5 

Are
a  
C 

11667 
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.5 

11629 
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.45 

11615 
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.83 

11577 
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.43 



11595 
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.77 

11567/ 
11569  
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.65 

11693 
Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

E Single-
family 

dwelling 

RR-AN  0.43 

* GP Land Use Designations: Service Commercial (SC), Single Family (SF),  Estate (EST),  Public (P), 
Employment Center (EC) 
** Base Districts: Light Industrial (LI), Rural Residential (RR), Public (P); Combining Districts: Panned 
Development (PD), Scenic Corridor (SC) 
 
Any city zoning designation must be compatible with the policies outlined for its 
respective General Plan Land Use Designation. However, some of the subject 
properties are already at a size that is smaller than the General Plan Designation and 
corresponding pre-zoning designations.  A non-conforming size will not have any effect 
on legal uses, though it may have the effect of creating a structure that is non-
conforming in terms of setbacks due to the existing development and small size of the 
parcels, but it is likely that these non-conforming issues exist under the current County 
designations.  

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT: One parcel in Area B is developed with a child care 
facility, a use that is currently incompatible with the City’s Single-Family (SF) General 
Plan designation. There are three base designations that allow such a use with a 
Conditional Use Permit LI, OP, and LB. Based on the surrounding uses, the planning 
commission recommended the LI designation to be the most compatible for the area. It 
should be noted that State law limits the City’s consideration of requested general plan 
amendments to four times each year. Staff knows of only one other amendment on the 
horizon (Safety Element update), but adoption of that amendment is more likely to occur 
in the 2021 calendar year.  

LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS: 
Application of base zones: In making its pre-zone recommendations, staff has 
considered the City’s guiding General Plan Land Use Designation for which an EIR was 
prepared in 1986. That EIR certified the existing land use classifications as being 
appropriate for meeting the objectives of the City in terms of growth and land use patterns 
and for which the City has reaffirmed through subsequent General Plan updates. Note 
that public notices indicated that most of the properties being recommended for RR 
zoning had been initially contemplated for Single-Family Residential (R1). However, it 
became apparent that this would mean several of the annexed properties would have 
further development potential, a circumstance that would have made the annexation 
project ineligible for exemption pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act.  The 



current pre-zoning recommendation considers the existing land use of a particular site, 
also included in the above table, as well as the development potential. All of the 
recommended City pre-zones are consistent with existing City General Plan designations.  

Application of Combining Districts: The SC Combining District has been applied to 
any parcel that is located within 300-feet of a designated scenic highway. The Planned 
Development District has been applied to the two State-owned properties at the Gold Flat 
Road/ Granholm Lane intersection whereby a ravine creates a heavy tree canopy and 
steep slopes. The PD district  is generally applied to those properties that had significant 
resource value or topographic interest and where clustering and open space preservation 
will be encouraged in any development proposal. The AN (Annexation) combining district 
has been recommended for all of the proposed  annexed territory  and identifies those 
lands which are affected by ordinances requiring payment of development fees or other 
mitigation measures, so that such fees or conditions may be required at the time of site 
plan, conditional use permit, or land division approval. (See Combining District 
descriptions in Attachment 3) 

CAPACITY TO SERVE CONSIDERATIONS:  
Wastewater (Sewer) Treatment Facility: Nevada City owns and operates a tertiary 
wastewater treatment facility designed with capacity to accommodate properties in the 
current SOI. The Plant has a capacity of 0.69 million gallons per day (mgd). Current 
average dry weather flow ranges from 0.38 to 0.47 mgd, indicating the facility has the 
capacity to serve the entire SOI. The facility’s design capacity and City’s subsequent 
significant capital investments over time were made because the facility anticipated 
serving all parcels within the current SOI boundary (the City has invested approximately 
$6 million in improvements since 2006/07 alone).  A significant determination in 
developing the current SOI was the fact that sewage from the SOI parcels would flow by 
gravity to the City’s wastewater facility. Sewer mains currently are at the City limits against 
the SOI. 

Fire Service:  For more than a decade, the City of Nevada City, City of Grass Valley and 
the Nevada County Consolidated Fire District (NCCFD), have operated under a Joint 
Operational Area (JOA) master agreement to provide reciprocal fire protection and 
emergency medical response services. Nevada City’s Fire Station 54 serves as one of 
seven JOA fire stations. The station was constructed, maintained and is staffed by six 
City of Nevada City funded professional firefighters and three interns, allowing the City to 
provide three firefighters per shift. The station performs approximately 1,000 calls for 
service annually, approximately 50% of which are provided on behalf of Grass Valley and 
NCCFD territory. While Nevada City represents approximately 8% of the JOA population, 
Station 54 represents 14% of the available JOA Fire Stations and contributes more dollars 
per capita than each of the other two agencies toward fire protection services.   



The City’s commitment to quality fire protection and emergency response services is 
underscored by the community’s recent 82% support for a 3/8 cent special sales tax to 
fund three firefighter positions (incidentally, this measure also provided sustainable 
funding to augment sworn City Police Department staffing by 10%). Pursuant to the JOA 
response standards, the closest available fire apparatus/resource will respond to calls for 
services. Response protocols often require multiple engine response depending on the 
type of service call and it is common to see two or three of the agencies responding to 
service calls of this nature. As a testament to the effectiveness of the reciprocal Master 
Services agreement, the Insurance Service Office (ISO) recently improved the Public 
Protection Classification ranking of the City’s fire suppression ranking from 5 to 3, which 
has the potential to lower insurance premiums for Nevada City residents. SOI properties 
annexed into the City are no longer required to pay the $117.33 State Fire Fee. 

Police Services: The City’s Police Department includes a sworn staff of 10 officers, 
which will increase to 11 after April 2017 when Measure C takes effect. This will change 
the City’s  ratio of full-time officers per 1,000 residents from 3.1 to 3.4 which is 
approximately 30% higher than the 2.2 average ratio reported by the U.S. Bureau of 
Justice Statistics (BJS) for cities with a service population of 2,500 to 9,999. A corps of 
seven Reserve Officers and three civilian staff that assist with records management, 
evidence management and community service activities supplements the Police 
Department’s sworn staff. In 2014, the City re-established its canine program (previously 
retired in 1999) to assist with suspect detection/apprehension and narcotics detection. 
This “force multiplier” adds to the City’s ability to provide high quality law enforcement 
services to the City and the proposed annexed SOI properties. 

In order to plan for containing the cost of municipal services, particularly Police and Fire, 
the City has established a pension reserve fund to address anticipated increases in 
pension costs due to California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 
investment losses and reductions in the CalPERS discount rate. Furthermore, the City 
has the most cost-effective (e.g. lowest) public safety pension formula available for 
“Classic Members” within Nevada County in order to assist the City in containing costs. 
It’s also notable that one-half of the City’s firefighters are already subject to the more cost-
effective Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) as well as 30% of the City’s 
Police Officers. A 2016 compensation survey confirmed that City positions are at or below 
market, which helps contain City expenses. Additionally, with the support of Measure L, 
a five-year 3/8 General Tax adopted in 2012, the City has been able to utilize 
approximately $432,000 annually for one-time City needs and to grow its reserve 
accounts to optimal levels. The City’s financial position continues to improve and the 
addition of a 70-unit campground and short-term home rental ordinance in 2016 promises 
to substantially augment City revenues in forthcoming years providing the means for the 
City to ensure the sustainability of quality municipal services. 



GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY  
All of the proposed pre-zoning recommendations are consistent with the City of Nevada 
City’s General Plan land use designations established by Resolution of the City Council 
in March 1986, and which has been reaffirmed by subsequent General Plan updates.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATION  
Staff and the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council approve a 
Resolution Approving a Notice of Exemption finding that the adoption of the Ordinance is 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 
pursuant to Title 14, Chapter 3, California Code of Regulations (CEQA Guidelines) 
Section 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that 
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment.  The pre-zoning 
will provide land use designations that are either compatible with existing developed uses 
or compatible with the Nevada City General Plan Land Use Designations and the planned 
use of the properties to be annexed for which an EIR was prepared and certified in 1986.  

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  
At their regular meeting held on July 16, 2020, the Planning Commission voted to 
recommend the general plan amendment and pre-zoning and annexation of the subject 
territory as presented by staff with a modification to the General Plan land use designation 
amendment, which has been incorporated into draft Ordinance 2020-XX, attached.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The costs involved are estimated at $1,900 (State Board of 
Equalization), $4,500 (map & legal), $2,500 (LAFCo deposit against costs, part of which 
may be refunded), total $8,900, plus city staff time. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Recommended Pre-zoning Map 
 Sphere of Influence Boundary Map, adopted 2008 
 City General Plan and Zoning Descriptions 
 Draft Resolution 2020-XX to File a Notice of Exemption (w/ attached NOE) 
 Draft Ordinance 2020-XX for pre-zone (w/ attached boundary map, legal 

description, and pre-zoning map) 
 Draft Resolution 2020-XX, to LAFCo annexation  



AUGUST 12, 2020  
Re: Annexation 56  
Staff Report Attachment list with hyperlinks 
______________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1 Recommended Pre-zoning Map 

2 Sphere of Influence Boundary Map, adopted 2008 

3 City General Plan and Zoning Descriptions 

4 Draft Resolution 2020-XX to File a Notice of Exemption (w/ 
attached NOE) 

5 Draft Ordinance 2020-XX for pre-zone (w/ attached boundary 
map, legal description, and pre-zoning map) 

6 Draft Resolution 2020-XX, to LAFCo annexation 



Public (P) 

Legend 

Base Zoning Districts: 

SC: Scenic Corridor 

PD: Planned Development 

AN: Annexation (applicable to all 
        annexed properties) 

Light Industrial (LI) 

Rural  Residential (RR) 

General Plan Amendment 
Recommendation to from 
Single Family (SF) to  
Employment Center (EC) 

Base Zoning Districts: 

Attachment 1: Pre-zoning Map, PC Annexation Staff Report 7/16/20 



Dashed line demarks 300-feet  
from the highway, for proper-
ties designated with the SC 
combining district.  

Public (P) 

Legend 

Base Zoning Districts: 

SC: Scenic Corridor 

PD: Planned Development 

AN: Annexation (applicable to all 
        annexed properties) 

Light Industrial (LI)

Rural  Residential (RR) 

General Plan Amendment 
Recommendation to from 
Single Family (SF) to  
Employment Center (EC) 

Base Zoning Districts: 

Attachment 1: Pre-zoning Map, PC Annexation Staff Report 7/16/20 



Public (P) 

Legend 

Base Zoning Districts: 

SC: Scenic Corridor 

PD: Planned Development 

AN: Annexation (applicable to all 
        annexed properties) 

Light Industrial (LI)

Rural  Residential (RR) 

General Plan Amendment 
Recommendation to from 
Single Family (SF) to  
Employment Center (EC) 

Base Zoning Districts: 

Attachment 1: Pre-zoning Map, PC Annexation Staff Report 7/16/20 





Nevada City General Plan and Zoning Descriptions 

General Plan Designation Descriptions:  

The above City General Plan Designations are defined as follows in the Land Use Section of the General 
Plan: 

• Open Space Preserve (OS): Land of high scenic, recreational, and/or resource value in an 
essentially unimproved state. 
 

• Public (P): Sites or facilities intended to remain in long-term public use. 
 

• Public/Recreation (P/R): Areas for public use, providing recreational facilities by public entities 
 

• Agricultural/Forestry (AF): Farmland, timberland, and other areas suitable for only very rural 
uses. (5 –acre minimum lot size) 
 

• Rural (R): Areas outside of projected pubic service boundaries that should remain very low density 
agricultural and/or residential use (maximum 1 dwelling unit/1-5 acres) 
 

• Estate (E): Areas outside of projected public service boundaries that should remain very low 
density agricultural and/or residential use. (Maximum 1 dwelling unit/1-3 acres). 

 

• Single-Family Residential (SF): Historic or other sensitive single-family neighborhoods 
inappropriate for increased densities. 
 

• Mixed Residential (MF): Areas suitable for increased housing density by such means as smaller lot 
sizes, planned unit development, townhouse, or garden apartment site plans (Maximum 8 
dwelling units/acre) 
 

• Urban High density Multiple Family Residential (UHD). The UHD land use designation is intended 
to accommodate town house style units, apartments and condominiums without distinction as to 
owner or renter occupancy. The primary purpose of the UHD land use designation is to fulfill the 
Housing Element needs to provide adequate sites to accommodate the City’s regional 
requirements for Very Low and Low income households as defined in Section 50079.5 and 50105 
respectively of the California Health and Safety Code. As such, lands that are designated shall be 
doe as part of the implementation of the Housing Element. Notwithstanding, additional lands may 
be designated through the general plan amendment process if the City finds that such lands would 
meet the needs of the future Housing Elements. The R3, High Density Multiple Family Residential 
zoning district implements this general plan and land use designations.  
 

• General Commercial (CG): Businesses and services oriented to community-wide or tourist needs, 
with the inclusion of mixed residential uses, and while complementing the nature and scale of 
Nevada City's central business district. (Analogous to General Business zoning classification) 
 

• Service Commercial (SC): Shops and services catering to the day-to-day needs of nearby residents. 
Mixed residential uses are also encouraged. (Analogous to Local Business zoning classification) 



 

• Service Lodging (SL): Existing hotels, motels, and lodging facilities located outside of service 
commercial or general commercial designations in areas suited for future lodging facilities. Based 
on future zoning ordinance implementation, this designation is also ideal for mixed-use residential 
uses to provide both short and long-term employee housing while advancing the residential-office 
transition. 
 

• Office and Professional (OP): Professional offices, general business offices, and research and 
development facilities not oriented toward general retail sales located in areas of transition 
between residential and more intensive land uses and/or where traffic access and circulation is 
good, but not sufficient for retail commercial. The Office and Professional land use designation is 
also ideal for mixed use residential uses to provide both short and long-term employee housing 
while advancing the residential-office transition. 

 
• Employment Center (EC): Light commercial or light industrial development concentrations which 

address the city's need for jobs and revenue but which do not harm the essential visual character 
of "historic town surrounded by open forest," and which remain sensitive to established 
neighborhoods. This designation is intended to include existing light industrial development and 
future development opportumt1es. Future zoning and development under this designation 
should fall within the following different categories, based on zoning and/or site plan review 
considering the nature of the neighborhood and surroundings [further EC requirements are 
outlined in the General Plan, but are omitted from this exhibit due to it  not being germane to this 
particular staff report} 
 

• Mixed Use Residential (MF): Mixed use residential land uses, including livework units are 
encouraged in the General Commercial, Service Commercial and Office and Professional land use 
designations. Mixed use development is an important ingredient that reflects Nevada City's 
downtown character, livability, sense of community and place while promoting a high quality of 
life. It is also one of the cornerstones of the General Plan that is intended to promote walkability, 
energy conservation, keeping eyes on the street, and a variety of smart growth principles. Mixed 
use residential development within commercial and professional offices is encouraged to be 
included within a second or third story as a means to maximize use of infrastructure, encourage 
a high degree of pedestrian activity, promote a safe town environment through maintaining 
human activity throughout the day and evening. Mixed uses will encourage infill, reinforce a 
compact form and help maintain the clear edge between the forested surrounding and the 
historic urban 
 

• Planned Development (PD): Large ownerships or other special opportunities for clustering or 
mixed-use development “Planned development” classification allows more creative solutions to 
provision of open space and amenities than do the standard setback, coverage, and height 
requirements. However, it also requires more attention to design review. 
 
Evaluation standards should be similar to those for “employment center” classification: 

o Street pattern and lot subdivision should be appropriate for the intended use and should 
be sensitive to adjacent uses. 

o Access should be well integrated with the surrounding traffic context. 



o A generously landscaped buffer zone should screen the view from surrounding roads, and 
existing tree cover should be retained insofar as possible. 

o Private open space should link into and reinforce the citywide open space trail system. 
o At least 25% should be vegetated open space, preferably by preserving existing trees. 

 
Clustering of development should enable the provision of generous landscaping, open space, and 
conservation areas.  

This PD designation may be combined with other land use designations (such as SF-PD for single-
family-planned development) where clustering of development providing generous open space, 
and other planned development features are clearly desirable.  

When using the planned development designation in combination with another land use 
designation, the density standards of the other designation apply.  

Zoning District Descriptions:  

The Zoning Ordinance (Title 17 of the Municipal Code) establishes the purpose of each of the above zoning 
designations as follows: 

 
• AF Agricultural Forestry Zone: The purpose of the AF zone is to preserve in agricultural and forestry 

use in the urban fringe, land suited to eventual development in other uses, pending proper timing for the 
economical provision of utilities, major streets and other facilities, so that compact, orderly development 
will occur. Change of zoning from AF to any other zone shall only be made in general accord with the 
Nevada City General Plan. This zone is consistent with all residential general plan designations. 
 

• Rural Residential: The purpose of the RR zone is to stabilize and protect the residential characteristics 
of district and to promote and encourage a suitable environment for family. The rural residential zone 
is intended to be used only for single-family and services appurtenant thereto. This zoning district is 
consistent with residential General Plan designations, except agriculture/forestry and rural. 
 

• R1 Single-Family Residential Zone: The purpose of the R1 zone is to stabilize and protect the residential 
characteristics of district and to promote and encourage a suitable environment for family. The R1 zone 
is intended to be used only for single-family homes and service appurtenant thereto. This zoning district 
is consistent with the single-family and mixed residential General Plan designations. 
 

• R2 Multiple Family Residential Zone: The purpose of the R2 multiple-family residential zone is to 
stabilize and protect the residential characteristics of a district where a compatible mingling of single-
family dwellings and multi-family dwellings is likely to occur, and to promote and encourage a 
suitable environment for family life. The R2 zone is intended for residence and the community 
services appurtenant thereto. This zoning district is consistent with the mixed residential general plan 
designations 

 
• R3 High Density Multiple Family Residential Zone: The purpose of the R3 high density multiple-

family residential zone is to implement the general plan urban high density land use designation. 
The primary purposes are to provide lands where greater density to accommodate affordable 
housing sites as required by the housing element. Suitable lands shall contain public sewer service, 
a public water supply, dry utilities, and have frontage on an improved city street with adequate 
capacity. To the extent possible, selected sites should be within walking distance of schools, 



shopping, parks and located on or in close proximity to a public transit route. Having access to such 
city services and facilities will minimize development costs and daily living expenses.  

The provisions of the chapter supersede other sections of the Zoning Code. To the extent that this 
chapter is silent regarding other requirements of the Zoning Code, those applicable provisions shall 
apply. The city planner shall clarify any provisions herein or otherwise interpret and apply the 
applicable provisions of the Zoning Code as long as said interpretation or clarification is consistent 
with the requirements and/or standards of this chapter 

• OP Office and Professional Zone: The OP zoning district is established to accommodate the need for 
the development of office space and mixed use residential uses. The inclusion of mixed use residential 
land uses in commercial areas is encouraged to increase the area's population and pedestrian activity 
while reducing air pollution, energy consumption and transportation costs. Normally this zoning will 
serve as a transition between commercial areas and residential areas and it is intended that the 
development permitted by this zoning shall be designed and landscaped so as to be in harmony with 
adjacent residential uses. This zoning district is consistent with the Office and Professional, General 
Commercial, and Service Commercial land use designations of the General Plan. 
 

• LB Local Business Zone: The purpose of the LB zone is to provide a neighborhood shopping zone 
where retail business or service establishments supply commodities or perform services to the daily 
needs of the residential neighborhoods or to meet the unique commercial demands placed upon Nevada 
City. This district is intended to allow most uses which are primarily involved in conducting retail sales 
and can accommodate mixed use residential uses. The inclusion of mixed use residential land uses in 
commercial areas is encouraged to increase the area's population and pedestrian activity while reducing 
air pollution, energy consumption and transportation costs. This district is consistent with the Service 
Commercial General Plan designation 

 
• GB General Business Zone: The purpose of the GB zone is to provide a location for the sale of 

commodities, performance of services, repair facilities, tourist oriented sales, and other types of general 
enterprise. The GB zone can also accommodate mixed use residential uses. The inclusion of mixed use 
residential land uses in commercial areas is encouraged to increase the area's population and pedestrian 
activity while reducing air pollution, energy consumption and transportation costs 
 

• EC Employment Center: The purpose of the EC zone is to encourage the development of light assembly, 
manufacturing, and research and development uses, which are compatible with surrounding 
neighborhoods and environment. Permitted uses shall be primarily employment oriented, with 
incidental retail sales permitted with approved uses. This zone shall be consistent with the Employment 
Center designation of the General Plan 
 

• LI Light Industrial Zone: The purpose of the LI zone is to encourage sound industrial development of 
the non-nuisance type by providing and protecting an area for such development, which area in turn 
shall be compatible with adjoining nonindustrial uses. This zoning district is consistent with the 
Employment Center General Plan designation 
 

• SL Service Lodging Zone: The purpose of the SL zoning district is to provide for and encourage the 
continuation, enhancement, and development of hotels, motels, and bed and breakfast facilities, together 
with incidental uses to these facilities. This zoning district is consistent with the Service Lodging, 
Service Commercial, General Commercial, and Employment Center designations of the General Plan 
 

• OS Open Space Zone: The purpose of the OS zoning district is to provide for and encourage the 
creation and permanent maintenance of open space, both natural and landscaped, for the purposes of 
maintaining and enhancing aesthetics, recreational opportunities, resource management, public health 



and safety, and mitigation of development. This zoning district is consistent with all General Plan 
designations. 
 

• P Public Zone: The purpose of the P zoning district is to provide zoning for areas occupied by 
federal, state, county and city government uses, along with recreation areas and parks, cemeteries. 
This district is also intended to accommodate quasi-public and public utility uses, along with uses 
incidental to public services. This zoning district is consistent with all General Plan land use 
designations.  

• PR Public/Recreation Zone: Public/recreation zoning provides for public use with development limited 
to providing recreational facilities by public entities for the use of the general public. Up to twenty-five 
percent of such property including parking areas of such property may be utilized for compatible public 
uses such as a school, fire station, library, community center or other similar public service uses 

 
Combining Districts: The purpose of the combining district regulations is to provide additional development 
standards for selected special cases, as defined in each of the combining district regulations. The combining 
district designation is combined with the base zoning district to achieve the desired level of development 
standards and land use application processing. It is intended that more than one combining district may be 
attached to the base zoning district. As an example, OP-HD-SC, would indicate the base zoning district of Office 
and Professional, with the Historical District and Scenic Corridor Combining District regulations.  
 

• HD The city council finds and declares that the area described in this section is one of great historical 
interest and aesthetic value. Within said district are many places and buildings which are important 
historical exhibits and unique architectural specimens. Said places and buildings are symbolic of the 
city's historical past as a mining town during the days of the California gold rush and thereafter 

• PD Planned Development Combining District: The purpose of the PD planned development combining 
district is to provide for greater flexibility in the design of integrated development in context with the 
general character of the city which would not be otherwise possible through strict interpretation or 
application of district regulations. It is the intent of this section to encourage the design of well planned 
facilities which offer a variety of housing or other land uses through creative and imaginative planning, 
which may be reviewed under the conditional use permit process. The standards and regulations of this 
combining district may be utilized in reviewing the proposed development of any property having the 
"-PD" combining district attached to the base zoning district. When shown on the Zone District Map, 
the regulations herein are encouraged to be utilized during the development of vacant lands. 
 

• MH The purpose of this article is to regulate the use of land for mobile home parks and to establish 
standards for the development of such parks in order to protect the health and safety of the community. 
The provisions of this section shall apply to zoning districts designated with the MH combining district 

 

• SC Scenic Corridor Combining District: The SC scenic corridor combining district classification is 
intended to be applied to land areas which are adjacent to roads and highways which are indicated on 
the General Plan with the symbol for scenic corridors, and as may be designated by the city council 
from time to time. These roadways are generally entryways to Nevada City which were recognized in 
the General Plan as being particularly important to protect the existing essential character of Nevada 
City, namely that of a small, compact historical town surrounded by green, wooded hills, by hiding 
development from view from the highways and preserving the existing tree cover to the greatest extent 
possible, and assuring visually pleasing corridors through design control. 

 

• SP Site Performance Combining District: The SP Site Performance Combining District, when attached 
to the base zoning district, is intended to provide for a greater level of mitigation of land use impacts 



than is otherwise possible under the broad development standards of the base zone. This combining 
district is also intended to allow for conditional approval of rezonings and prezonings. 
 

• DA The Development Agreement combining district is intended to be attached to base zoning districts 
which are further restricted or governed by a development agreement between the land owner and the 
city. This combining district is an administrative district for purposes of indicating on the Zone District 
Map that such an agreement exists. The city staff is authorized to place this combining district on the 
Zone District Map, after such an agreement has been executed by the city 
 

• The X Excluding Subdivision combining district is intended to prohibit further division of the lands 
where the combining district is shown on the Zone District Map. The purpose of the district is to provide 
a method of mitigating the impacts of current projects by allowing the city to permanently freeze parcel 
sizes. As an example, a planned development project might cluster development or lots on one portion 
of a large parcel while leaving the remaining area of the parcel as open space. By applying the "-X" 
combining district to the open space parcel, future additional divisions of the property can be avoided 
 

• AN Annexation Combining District: The AN Annexation combining district is intended to be attached 
to the base zoning districts of parcels annexed after April 24, 1985. The district is administrative in 
nature and the city staff is authorized to attach the combining district to any such annexed lands. The 
purpose of the combining district is to identify lands which are affected by ordinances requiring payment 
of development fees or other mitigation measures, so that such fees or conditions may be required at the 
time of site plan, conditional use permit, or land division approval. Such fees shall be payable prior to 
the issuance of a building permit or prior to the recording of the final or parcel map, whichever occurs 
first  
 

• In any zoning district, the minimum lot size provided therein may be increased to an alternative 
minimum lot size requirement by utilizing the minimum lot area combining district defined herein. All 
other provisions of the base zoning district, including, but not limited to, land uses, frontages, setbacks, 
and building heights shall remain in effect. The purpose of this combining district is to provide for 
greater flexibility in establishing lot development density where necessary. This designation is for the 
purpose of controlling future subdivision and shall not prohibit lots in existence at the time of this article 
amendment from reasonable improvement of their property consistent with the site development 
standards of the base zoning district. When used in conjunction with the PD combining district, the 
minimum area designation shall establish the density allowed in developing the property so designated. 
 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX                     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NEVADA CITY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, TO FILE 
 A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION  

(Annexation #56 and Pre-zoning) 
   

WHEREAS, the City Planner and City Attorney have reviewed the Ordinance  for pre-zoning of 
that area described as “Annexation #56,”along with the Resolution initiating an application with LAFCo 
for an Annexation of that area described as “Annexation #56,”(“Project”) and determined that it is 
exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Title 14, Chapter 3, 
California Code of Regulations, Section 15061 (b)(3) – Activity is not subject to CEQA because there is 
no possibility the project will have a significant effect on the environment; and 
 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for the Project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City as 

follows: 
 
Section 1. Based on the review and determination of the Planning Department, the City Council 

of the City of Nevada City finds that the Project is exempt from review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 
 

Section 2. A Notice of Exemption is recommended for approval for the Project. 
 
Section 3. Upon approval of the Project by the City Council, the City Clerk may file the Notice of 

Exemption with the County Clerk of Nevada County and, if the Project requires a discretionary approval 
from any state agency, with the State Office of Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 21152(b) of the Public Resources Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant 
thereto. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City at a 

public meeting held on the______ of __________________, 2020 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
       _____________________________ 
                  Erin Minnett, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________  
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
     



 
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 

   
 
 
TO:  Office of Planning and Research  FROM:  City of Nevada City 
  1400 Tenth Street       317 Broad Street 
  Sacramento, CA 95814      Nevada City, CA 95959 
 

 Nevada County Clerk/Recorder’s Office 
Environmental Filings 
Eric W. Rood Administrative Center 
950 Maidu Avenue, Nevada City CA 95959 

 
Project Title:  Nevada City Annexation #56 
 
Project Address:  317 Broad Street, Nevada City, California 95959 
 
Project Location:  

• Area A (3.73 acre area along Gold Flat Road) 
o 10709 Gold Flat Road (037-050-035), property owner on record: DUNN J LINDA 

TRSTE 
o 10681 Gold Flat Road (037-060-006), property owner on record: WALKER CLYDE E 

ETAL 
o 10643 Gold Flat Road (037-060-075), property owner on record: BEARDSLEY 

WILLIAM G ETAL 
o 10613 Gold Flat Road (037-060-009), property owner on record: BARBER AMY J 

TRSTE ETAL 
o 10597 Gold Flat Road (037-060-010), property owner on record: ANGELINI FRED & 

ANNE C TRSTES 
o 10549 Gold Flat Road (037-060-011), property owner on record: 2018 ANGELINI 

IRREVOCABLE TRUST 

• Area B (27.64 acres at Gold Flat Road and State Highway 49) 
o 10310 Granholm Lane (037-230-037), property owner on record: STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA 
o 10266 Granholm Lane (035-230-036) property owner on record: STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA 
o 10057 Gold Flat Road (035-230-035), property owner on record: STATE OF 

CALIFORNIA, DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS-MAINTENANCE 
o 10114 Granholm Lane (035-230-033), property owner on record: APPLEGATE E 

MARK TRSTE 

• Area C (3.83 acres along Bourbon Hill Road)  
o 11667 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-036), property owner on record: THOMPSON 

WENDY J TRSTE ETAL 



o 11629 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-067), property owner on record: CHRISTINE & 
KENNETH KRUGLER LIVING TRUST 

o  11615 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-068), property owner on record: DUNBAR BRION 
L & ALICE T TRSTES 

o 11577 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-038), property owner on record: DUNBAR BRION 
L & ALICE T TRSTES 

o 11595 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-039), property owner on record: EBERHART 
ALLAN R TRSTE & SWEETSER ALISON R TRSTE 

o  11567 and 11569 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-040), property owner on record: TOBEY 
VICKIE TRSTE 

o 11693 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-035), property owner on record: DENNIS JULIE A 
 
Project Location – County: Nevada 
 
Project Description:  The City of Nevada City is filing the appropriate application to annex the 

above properties, which are currently outside of the City limits but within the 
Sphere of Influence boundary. All 35.2 acres are located within either the current 
horizon or the 2013 horizon boundaries. The annexation territory includes 
approximately 16 acres of public right-of-way area.  

.   
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Nevada City 
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:  City of Nevada City 
 
Exempt Status:  (Check One) 
  Ministerial (Section 21080(b)(1); 15268); 
  Declared Emergency (Section 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 
  Emergency Project (Section 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 
     X  “Common Sense” Exception (Section 15061(b)(3)) 
__   Categorical Exemption.  Type and section number:   
  Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  
 
Reasons why project is exempt: The project includes a Resolution to initiate an annexation with 
LAFCo for property within the City’s Sphere of Influence (SOI) and an Ordinance for pre-zoning of all 
that territory proposed to be annexed. All of the proposed annexation territory can be served by sewer 
or currently being served by sewer and the City’s waste water treatment facility has the capacity to 
serve the entire territory at the land use intensities specified by the pre-zoning as verified by the City 
Engineer.  Further, the City currently participates in a Joint Operational Area (JOA) master agreement 
with the City of Grass Valley and with Nevada County Consolidated Fire District to provide reciprocal 
fire protection and emergency medical response services to the area identified within that annexation 
territory.  Finally, The City’s Police Department increased to 11 sworn staff when Measure C took effect 
in April 2017, resulting in a 3.4 ratio of officers per 1,000 residents (higher than the 2.2 national average 
for small cities).  Therefore, the project is exempt from CEQA as there is no possibility that the project 
will have a significant impact on the environment (Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15061(b)(3). 
 
Lead Agency Contact Person: Amy Wolfson, City Planner   Number: 530-265-2496 X130 
 
Signature & Title:          Date:      
 
�  Signed by Lead Agency    � Signed by Applicant Date received for filing:    
 



 
 

ORDINANCE 2020-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE ANNEXATION, PREZONING, AND GENERAL 
PLAN AMENDMENTOF 35.2 ACRES WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF 
NEVADA COUNTYIN THREE DISTINCT AREAS ALONG BOURBON HILL ROAD 

AND GOLD FLAT ROAD 
 
The City Council of the City of Nevada City does hereby ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION I: 
 
Upon certification of the annexation by the Nevada County Local Agency Formation 
Commission, the official City Map of Nevada City shall be amended to reflect the 
annexation of the following properties and including approximately 16 acres of existing, 
right-of-way area within the unincorporated area of Nevada County to the City limits of 
Nevada City and more particularly described as shown on the attached Exhibit A: 

• Area A (3.73 acre area along Gold Flat Road) 
o 10709 Gold Flat Road (037-050-035), property owner on record: DUNN J 

LINDA TRSTE 
o 10681 Gold Flat Road (037-060-006), property owner on record: 

WALKER CLYDE E ETAL 
o 10643 Gold Flat Road (037-060-075), property owner on record: 

BEARDSLEY WILLIAM G ETAL 
o 10613 Gold Flat Road (037-060-009), property owner on record: 

BARBER AMY J TRSTE ETAL 
o 10597 Gold Flat Road (037-060-010), property owner on record: 

ANGELINI FRED & ANNE C TRSTES 
o 10549 Gold Flat Road (037-060-011), property owner on record: 2018 

ANGELINI IRREVOCABLE TRUST 

• Area B (27.64 acres at Gold Flat Road and State Highway 49) 
o 10310 Granholm Lane (037-230-037), property owner on record: STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA 
o 10266 Granholm Lane (035-230-036) property owner on record: STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA 
o 10057 Gold Flat Road (035-230-035), property owner on record: STATE 

OF CALIFORNIA, DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS-MAINTENANCE 
o 10114 Granholm Lane (035-230-033), property owner on record: 

APPLEGATE E MARK TRSTE 

• Area C (3.83 acres along Bourbon Hill Road)  
o 11667 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-036), property owner on record: 

THOMPSON WENDY J TRSTE ETAL 
o 11629 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-067), property owner on record: 

CHRISTINE & KENNETH KRUGLER LIVING TRUST 



o  11615 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-068), property owner on record: 
DUNBAR BRION L & ALICE T TRSTES 

o 11577 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-038), property owner on record: 
DUNBAR BRION L & ALICE T TRSTES 

o 11595 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-039), property owner on record: 
EBERHART ALLAN R TRSTE & SWEETSER ALISON R TRSTE 

o  11567 and 11569 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-040), property owner on 
record: TOBEY VICKIE TRSTE 

o 11693 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-035), property owner on record: 
DENNIS JULIE A 

 
SECTION II: 
 
Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a document entitled “Properties Proposed for Prezoning, 
And Annexation to the City of Nevada City”, which is made a part hereof by reference.  
This exhibit lists each parcel to be annexed to the City of Nevada City and sets forth the 
prezoning. The City Council hereby approves the prezoning for each parcel and one 
General Plan Amendment for as set forth in Exhibit B.  The prezoning and General Plan 
Amendment shall not become effective unless and until the annexation of the property 
which is subject to the prezone is certified by the Nevada County Local Agency 
Formation Commission. 
 
SECTION III: 
 
In approving this prezoning, the City Council finds as follows: 
 
1. The prezoning and General Plan Amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives 

and policies of the Nevada City General Plan. 
 
2. The proposed prezoning and General Plan Amendment will not adversely affect the 

public health, safety and welfare or result in an illogical land use. 
 
3. The Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing and, after review 

of all verbal and written testimony, recommended to the City Council the approval of 
the prezoning and General Plan Amendment. 

 
4. That the proposed project could not have a significant effect on the environment, 

and that any anticipated effects of future ministerial projects would be mitigated by 
existing City development standards, which would govern such projects. 

 
5. That any anticipated effects of future discretionary projects would be mitigated as 

necessary by future environmental documents prepared to analyze such a proposal 
along with existing City development standards, which would govern such projects. 

 
6. City staff shall attach the AN Annexation classification to all parcels annexed in 

order to facilitate administrative processing pursuant to the zoning ordinance. 
 
SECTION IV: 
 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from the date of its adoption and a copy 
of this ordinance shall be posted in at least three (3) public places in the City of Nevada 
City within fifteen (15) days after its passage. 
 



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular scheduled meeting of the City Council in the City 
of Nevada City on _________, 2020 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
       __________________________ 
                             Erin Minnett, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________  
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



Public (P) 

Legend 

Base Zoning Districts: 

SC: Scenic Corridor 

PD: Planned Development 

AN: Annexation (applicable to all 
        annexed properties) 

Light Industrial (LI)

Rural  Residential (RR) 

General Plan Amendment 
Recommendation to from 
Single Family (SF) to  
Employment Center (EC) 

Base Zoning Districts: 

Attachment 1: Pre-zoning Map, PC Annexation Staff Report 7/16/20 ORDINANCE 2020-XX (Prezoning)
Exhibit a



Dashed line demarks 300-feet  
from the highway, for proper-
ties designated with the SC 
combining district.  

Public (P) 

Legend 

Base Zoning Districts: 

SC: Scenic Corridor 

PD: Planned Development 

AN: Annexation (applicable to all 
        annexed properties) 

Light Industrial (LI)

Rural  Residential (RR) 

General Plan Amendment 
Recommendation to from 
Single Family (SF) to  
Employment Center (EC) 

Base Zoning Districts: 

Attachment 1: Pre-zoning Map, PC Annexation Staff Report 7/16/20 



Public (P) 

Legend 

Base Zoning Districts: 

SC: Scenic Corridor 

PD: Planned Development 

AN: Annexation (applicable to all 
        annexed properties) 

Light Industrial (LI) 

Rural  Residential (RR) 

General Plan Amendment 
Recommendation to from 
Single Family (SF) to  
Employment Center (EC) 

Base Zoning Districts: 

Attachment 1: Pre-zoning Map, PC Annexation Staff Report 7/16/20 



ORDINANCE 2020-XX (Prezoning) 
Exhibit B 

Property APN 
City GP 

Designation* Current Use 
Pre-zoning 

Recommendation** 

GP Amendment 
Recommendation 

(where applicable)* Acreage 
Area 

A 
10709 Gold Flat Road 037-050-035 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.63 
10681 Gold Flat Road: 037-060-006 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.75 

10643 Gold Flat Road 037-060-075 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.67 

10613 Gold Flat Road 037-060-009 E Vacant RR-AN 0.16 
10597 Gold Flat 037-060-010 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.43 
10549 Gold Flat Road 037-060-011 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.89 

Area 
B 

10310 Granholm Lane 037-230-037 SF Vacant (State-owned) P-PD-AN 0.71 
10266 Granholm Lane 035-230-036 P Vacant (State-owned) P-PD-AN 1.10 
10057 Gold Flat Road 035-230-035 P Caltrans Maintenance 

Yard 
P-SC-AN 8.03 

10114 Granholm Lane 035-230-033 SF Commercial Child Care 
Facility 

LI-SC-AN Light Industrial (LI) 1.5 

Area 
C 

11667 Bourbon Hill Rd 036-301-036 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.5 
11629 Bourbon Hill Rd 036-301-067 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.45 
11615 Bourbon Hill Rd 036-301-068 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.83 
11577 Bourbon Hill Rd 036-301-038 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.43 
11595 Bourbon Hill Rd 036-301-039 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.77 
11567/ 11569  Bourbon 
Hill Rd 

036-301-040 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.65 

11693 Bourbon Hill Rd 036-301-035 E Single-family dwelling RR-AN 0.43 



Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION 2020-XX 

RESOLUTION OF APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
REQUESTING THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

OF NEVADA COUNTY TO INITIATE PROCEEDINGS FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF 35.2 ACRES LOCATED IN THREE DISTINCT 

AREAS OF THE CITY SPHERE OF INFLUENCE ALONG BOURBON 
HILL ROAD AND GOLD FLAT ROAD,  CITY ANNEXATION NO. 56 

RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Nevada City, that 

WHEREAS, the City of Nevada City wishes to initiate proceedings pursuant to the 
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, Government 
Code § 56000 et seq, for the annexation of territory east of the City, 35.2 acres along 
Bourbon Hill Road and Gold Flat Road, known as City Annexation No. 56; and  

WHEREAS, the territory proposed to be annexed is delineated by description of the 
boundaries set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, with a map showing the territory to 
be annexed attached hereto as Exhibit B, both incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, this proposal is consistent with the City’s sphere of influence, as updated 
by the Local Agency Formation Commission in October of 2008; and 

WHEREAS, this proposal is anticipated to be consistent with the proposed update to 
the City sphere of influence, currently under review by the Local Agency Formation 
Commission; and 

WHEREAS, it is desired that the proposed annexation be subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 

• The subject territory has been pre-zoned by the City Council with the 
following base districts: Public (P), Rural Residential (RR), Light Industrial 
LI); and

• One parcel of the subject territory will require a General Plan Amendment 
from Single Family Residential (SF) to Employment Center (EC)

• The subject territory shall be detached from the Nevada County 
Consolidated Fire District upon annexation to the City; and

• The territory shall be subject to the levying or fixing and collection of any 
previously authorized taxes, benefit assessments, fees and charges of the 
City. 

WHEREAS, the Nevada City General Plan states it to be the City’s intention to 
ultimately include its entire sphere of influence within its boundaries and that each 
proposal for annexation will be judged individually on its physical, fiscal, and 
aesthetic compatibility with the goals and policies of the City of Nevada City;  



Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, the 3.76-acre delineated as “Area A” consists of six residential properties 
within an area of the Nevada City SOI that borders the existing City limits and represents 
a logical City boundary, located at  

o 10709 Gold Flat Road (037-050-035),
o 10681 Gold Flat Road (037-060-006)
o 10643 Gold Flat Road (037-060-075)
o 10613 Gold Flat Road (037-060-009)
o 10597 Gold Flat Road (037-060-010)
o 10549 Gold Flat Road (037-060-011); and

WHEREAS, the 27.64 acres delineated as “Area B”  consists of four parcels within an 
area of the Nevada City SOI that borders the existing City limits and represents a logical 
City boundary, three of which are owned by the State of California, and the one of which 
is currently being used as a commercial child care facility, located at: 

o 10310 Granholm Lane (037-230-037)
o 10266 Granholm Lane (035-230-036)
o 10057 Gold Flat Road (035-230-035)
o 10114 Granholm Lane (035-230-033); and

WHEREAS, the 3.83 delineated as “Area C” consists of seven parcels within an area of 
the Nevada City SOI that borders the existing City limits, and represents a logical 
boundary, contiguous with adjacent properties proposed for annexation;  

o 11667 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-036)
o 11629 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-067
o 11615 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-068)
o 11577 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-038)
o 11595 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-039)
o 11567 and 11569 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-040)
o 11693 Bourbon Hill Road (036-301-035)

WHEREAS, the City Council adopts the findings recommended by the Planning 
Commission that the annexation qualifies for exemption to the pursuant to California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) because it can be 
seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a 
significant effect on the environment. All that territory to be annexed is located in the 
anticipated City expansion area as identified in the Sphere of Influence Map adopted 
by LAFCo in October 2008. The pre-zoning will provide land use designations that 
are either compatible with existing developed uses or compatible with the established 
Nevada City General Plan Land Use Designations. 



Page 3 of 3 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby adopts the plan for providing services to the 
affected territory required by Government Code § 56653 and attached hereto as 
Exhibit C and made a part hereof by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council certifies that pursuant to §99 (b) of the Tax and 
Revenue Code: the Council agrees that property taxes for the territory to be annexed 
to the City shall be allocated between the City and Nevada County pursuant to the 
existing master tax agreement adopted by the Board of Supervisors as Resolution 
81-235.

WHEREAS, the City Council certifies that, pursuant to Government Code §56663(d) 
that it consents to the Local Agency Formation Commission’s waiver of the final 
protest hearing if no written opposition from property owners or registered voters 
within the affected territory is received prior to the conclusion of the LAFCo meeting. 

NOW THEREFORE, this Resolution of Application is hereby adopted and approved 
by the City of Nevada City, and the Local Agency Formation Commission of Nevada 
County is hereby requested to initiate proceedings for the annexation of the territory 
described by the Local Government Reorganization Act. 

This resolution shall not be effective until the final adoption of Ordinance 2020-XX 
establishing the zoning of the property. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the City Council of the City of Nevada City, this 
______________  day of _______________, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_______________________________________, 
Erin Minnett, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 
Annexation to the  

City of Nevada City 
 

A PORTION of the West half of Section 18, Township 16 North, Range 9 East, M.D.M., 
Nevada County, California; BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
BEGINNING AT A POINT from which the point shown as “20+49.67 BEGIN” on Record of 
Survey, Book 10, Page 280, N.C.O.R. lies S 44-19-14 W, 35.55’; THENCE FROM SAID 
POINT OF BEGINNING the following three (3) courses along the East line of “Area 1”: 

1) N 4°00’12” W, 44.34’ 
2) N 85°59’48” W, 3.00’ 
3) A curve to the right, having a Radius of 280’, length of 121.81 and delta angle of 

24°55’34” to the South corner of “Area 3” per aforementioned Survey; 
THENCE the following four (4) courses along the East line of “Area 3”: 

1) A curve to the right, having a Radius of 280’, length of 9.56 and delta angle of 01°57’21” 
2) N 30°58’07” E, 39.26’ 
3) A curve to the left, having a Radius of 320’, length of 29.80 and delta angle of 05°20’11” 
4) N 25°32’56” E, 21.45’ 

THENCE the following three (3) courses along the East line of “Area 4”: 
5) N 25°32’56” E, 111.83’ 
6) A curve to the left having a radius of 320’, length of 31.58 and delta angle of 05°39’54” 
7) N 19°53’38” E, 8.65’ 

THENCE the following one (1) course along the East line of “Area 5”: 
8) N 19°53’38” E, 47.52’  

THENCE the following four (4) courses along the East line of “Area 6” and an overlapping 
portion of “Area 7”: 

9) N 86°16’00” E, 5.46’ 
10) N 19°53’38” E, 54.28’ 
11) A curve to the right, having a Radius of 375’, length of 143.88’ and delta angle of 

21°58’58” 
12) N 41°52’36” E, 86.58’ to a Lead & Tack with Tag LS 4363 

THENCE the following four (4) courses along the East line of “Area 7”: 
13) N 41°52’36” E, 97.8 +/- to a B.C Station 29+42.21 as shown on said map  
14) A curve to the right, having a Radius of 275’, length of 56.98 and delta angle of 

11°52’17” 
15) N 53°44’53” E, 31.63’ 
16) N 53°09’23” E, 113.64’ to the West line of Lot 73, the Sneath & Clay Quartz Claim 

THENCE leaving said Survey map 
17) S 09°45’00” E, 147.96’ along said claim line to the center of the old Narrow Gauge 

Right-of-Way; 
18) S 45°21’12” W, 107.18’ along said Right-of-Way to the most northerly corner of the 

Hinrichs to Pendola Parcel per Book 09 Surveys Page 219; 
THENCE the following three (3) courses shown on said Survey: 



19) S 44°36’42” W, 71.00’ 
20) S 45°13’00” W, 103.13’ 
21) S 41°20’00” W, 111.00’ 

THENCE the following two (2) courses along Casper Parcel: 
22) S 26°35’00” W, 171.52’ 
23) S 20°14’00” W, 96.37’ 

THENCE the following seven (7) courses along the Wood parcel per Book 11 Surveys Page 
355: 

24) S 22°04’00” W, 233.43’ 
25) S 39°02’00” W, 27.24’ 
26) S 35°09’00” E, 52.57’  
27) S 13°03’00” E, 134.01’ 
28) S 25°06’00” E, 31.35’ 
29) S 36°13’00” E, 23.80’ 
30) S 09°01’00” E, 18.19’ 

THENCE the following two (2) courses along the northerly boundary of Pinewoods Road: 
31) N 86°06’00” W, 180.64’ 
32) N 55°13’00” W, 49.69’ 

THENCE the following five (5) courses along the easterly boundary of Gold Flat Road: 
33) N 06°05’00” W, 53.71’ 
34) N 17°36’00” E, 89.80’ 
35) N 09°11’00” E, 81.56’ 
36) N 07°30’00” E, 28.47’ 
37) S 61°52’00” E, 15.38’ to the point of beginning 

 
THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION was prepared by me based on an examination of recorded 
deeds and more recent recorded annexation maps and surveys in the annexation area in August 
2020. 

 
 
 
 

__________________________________08/06/2020  
Dan Hoagland, PLS 4370 
Professional Land Surveyor 
Nevada City Engineering, Inc. 
505 Coyote Street, Suite B 
Nevada City, CA  95959 

 



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 
Annexation to the  

City of Nevada City 
 

A PORTION of the Southeast quarter of Section 13, Township 16 North, Range 8 East, 
M.D.M., Nevada County, California; BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
BEGINNING AT A POINT that is at the easterly end of course No. 52 on Record of Survey, 
Book 11, Page 339, N.C.O.R.; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING the 
following five (5) courses along said Survey map: 

1) S 66-58-39 E, 378.75’ 
2) N 77-17-16 E, 54.36’ 
3) S 58-25-58 E, 611.93’ 
4) S 63-17-31 E, 195.09’  
5) N 82-58-41 E, 146.77’ 

THENCE leaving said Survey map  
6) S 67-54-30 W, 126.97’ to the Northeast corner of the Granholm Life Estate Parcel and 

the southerly boundary of Granholm Lane 
THENCE the following two (2) courses along said Granholm Life Estate Parcel: 

7) S 56-41-24 W, 151.00’ 
8) S 32-48-00 E, 15.43’ 

THENCE the following fifteen (15) courses along the southerly boundary of Granholm Lane as 
shown on Record of Survey, Book 13, Page 49, N.C.O.R.: 

9) S 60-46-00 W, 206.67’ 
10) A curve to the right having a Radius of 420’, length of 54.61 and delta angle of 

07°27’00” 
11) S 68-13-00 W, 272.32’ 
12) N 88-59-00 W, 92.92’ 
13) S 88-12-00 W, 194.90’ 
14) A curve to the right having a Radius of 400’, length of 194.78 and delta angle of 

11°48’36” 
15) N 63-54-00 W, 69.83’ 
16) N 82-16-53 W, 68.71’  
17) S 67-09-30 W, 65.48’ 
18) A curve to the left having a Radius of 170’, length of 80.03 and delta angle of 26°58’17” 
19) S 40-11-13 W, 226.95’ 
20) A curve to the left having a Radius of 20’, length of 29.34 and delta angle of 84°02’50” 
21) A non-tangent curve to the right having a Radius of 60’, length of 105.03 and delta angle 

of 100°17’37” from which the center of said curve bears S 46-08-23 W 
22) S 56-26-00 W, 50.00’ 
23) N 33-34-00 W, 57.62’   

THENCE the following course along the easterly boundary of the White parcel described in 
Document No. 99-009290, N.C.O.R.: 

24) N 46-26-39 W, 50.08’  



THENCE the following five (5) courses along the southerly boundary of the Golden Center 
Freeway to the intersection of Banner Lava Cap Road: 

25) S 48-04-02 W, 410.82’ 
26) S 53-16-30 W, 447.87’ 
27) S 39-30-30 W, 191.15’ 
28) S 38-04-44 W, 313.58’ 
29) S 59-33-37 W, 3.08’  

THENCE the following three (3) courses along the easterly boundary of Banner Lava Cap Road  
30) A non-tangent curve to the left having a Radius of 530’, length of 83.38 and delta angle 

09°00’49” from which the center of said curve bears S 60-15-03 W 
31) N 38-45-45 W, 270.38’ 
32) A curve to the right having a Radius of 10’, length of 15.80 and delta angle of 90°31’38” 

THENCE the following eight (8) courses along the northerly boundary of the Golden Center 
Freeway as shown on Record of Survey Book 11, Page 323, N.C.O.R.: 

33) N 51-22-03 E, 153.04’ 
34) A curve to the left having a Radius of 225’, length of 81.29 and delta angle of 20°40’29”  
35) N 73-17-18 E, 250.71’ 
36) N 47-24-41 E, 350.28’ 

THENCE leaving said Survey map the following four (4) courses continuing along the northerly 
boundary of the Golden Center Freeway 

37) N 52-41-43 E, 111.13’ 
38) N 45-22-25 E, 632.32’ 
39) N 38-35-20 E 467.99’ 
40) N 21-50-06 E 458.46’ to the point of beginning 

 
 
THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION was prepared by me based on an examination of recorded 
deeds and more recent recorded annexation maps and surveys in the annexation area in August 
2020. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________08/06/2020  
Dan Hoagland, PLS 4370 
Professional Land Surveyor 
Nevada City Engineering, Inc. 
 



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 
Annexation to the  

City of Nevada City 
 

A PORTION of the North half of Section 7, Township 16 North, Range 9 East, M.D.M., Nevada 
County, California; BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT that lies N 34° 25’ W, 248.40’ from the most easterly corner of the lands 
annexed on at that certain map filed in Book 9 Surveys Page 90, Nevada County Records; THENCE 
FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING following said annexation boundary the following three (3) 
courses: 

1) N 43-38-00 W, 60.55’ 
2) S 70-14-00 W, 198.45’ 
3) N 29-31-00 W, 138.7 +/- to the southerly boundary of Bourbon Hill Road 

THENCE following the southerly boundary of Bourbon Hill Road, the following three (3) courses: 
4) N 52-03-00 E, 150.00’ 
5) N 51-50-00 E, 325.15’ 
6) N 50-40-00 E, 194.15’ extending said bearing to the northeasterly boundary of Uren Street; 

THENCE along said boundary, S 56-22-00 E, 20.08’ to the northwest line of Olin per Book 15 Surveys 
Page 181; THENCE S 53-35-00 W, 21.45’ to the west corner of Olin per said map; THENCE S 49-22-
00 E, 165.53’ along the southwest line of said parcel to a point which bears N 36-33-00 E from the most 
northerly corner of the lands described in Document 2006-038614, THENCE S 36-33-00 E, 126.34’ to 
the westerly corner of said parcel, as shown on the map book 17 Surveys page 36; THENCE S 58-59-
11 E, 86.84’ to the southerly corner of said parcel as shown on said map; THENCE the following three 
(3) courses along the southerly lines of said map: 

7) S 36-54-16 W, 144.27’ 
8) N 54-38-00 W, 37.29’ 
9) S 58-16-00 W, 122.45’ 

THENCE S 59-13-48 W, 151.65’ along the northerly boundary of Documents 91-007563, 2017-005519 
and 2006-028184 to the point of beginning. 
 
THIS LEGAL DESCRIPTION was prepared by me based on an examination of recorded deeds and 
more recent recorded annexation maps and surveys in the annexation area in August 2020. 

 

 

 

__________________________________08/06/2020  
Dan Hoagland, PLS 4370 
Professional Land Surveyor 
Nevada City Engineering, Inc. 



Resolution  2020-XX
Exhibit B

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOVERNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
92-150-33

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 800'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANIEL E. HOAGLAND         L.S. 8621 REGISTRATION EXPIRES        12-31-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-930

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DANIEL E. HOAGLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.S. #8621

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 800'                    MAY, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA CITY   ,   CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTIONS 7 AND 18 , T. 16 N., R. 9 E., M.D.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A PORTION OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNEXATION 20-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
505 COYOTE STREET * P.O. BOX 1437 * NEVADA CITY * CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
N E V A D A   C I T Y   E N G I N E E R I N G  ,   I N C .

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA ''C''

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA ''A''

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA ''B''

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT   RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOST

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20/49

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOURBON

AutoCAD SHX Text
UREN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY 49

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITTSBURG

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAVA CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNEATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AREA ''A''

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AREA ''B''

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT AREA ''C''

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROA

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED DOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GO

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RID

AutoCAD SHX Text
GE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RO

AutoCAD SHX Text
AD

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. 16 N., R. 8 & 9 E., M.D.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 2000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O C A T I O N   M A P

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION, IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR'S ACT AT THE REQUEST OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY IN FEBRUARY 2020.THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY IN FEBRUARY 2020. IN FEBRUARY 2020.FEBRUARY 2020..

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPUTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLERK RECORDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK %%U    %%U OF SURVEYS AT PAGE %%U     %%U AT THE REQUEST OF S.R. JONES

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILED THIS %%U     %%U DAY OF %%U               %%U, 2020  AT %%U     %%U %%U %%U.M. IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY RECORDER'S STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEE PAID:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY J. DIAZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESOLUTION NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY NEVADA COUNTY LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.R. JONES LAFCO EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS MAP, WHEN RECORDED, WAS ACCOMPANIED BY A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION PREPARED PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 57200-57202 OF THE GOVERNMENT CODE, TO WHICH WAS ATTACHED A CERTIFIED COPY OF THE BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION OF THE TERRITORY SHOWN ON SAID MAP. THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION IS RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO.                   , NEVADA COUNTY RECORDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LD

AutoCAD SHX Text
R. 9 E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R. 8 E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 13 , T. 16 N., R. 8 E., M.D.M. AND 



Resolution  2020-XX
Exhibit B

AutoCAD SHX Text
92-150-33

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC. No. 00-034033

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGELINI TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-930

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 26%%D35'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 45%%D21'12" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O L D

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW MOHAWK

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA A

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.73 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 100'                    MAY, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA CITY   ,   CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 1/2 OF SECTION 18, T. 16 N., R. 9 E., M.D.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A PORTION OF THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNEXATION 20-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
505 COYOTE STREET * P.O. BOX 1437 * NEVADA CITY * CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
N E V A D A   C I T Y   E N G I N E E R I N G  ,   I N C .

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC. No. 12-026480

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASPER TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC. No. 07-014707

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLEAU TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC. No. 84-017995

AutoCAD SHX Text
KRAUT TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
F L A T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
RO

AutoCAD SHX Text
AD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINEWOODS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNEATH-CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O L D     F L A T     P A R K

AutoCAD SHX Text
7        S U B S        9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 9%%D45'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
147.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 45%%D13'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 41%%D20'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 44%%D36'42" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
71.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
171.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 20%%D14'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
96.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 39%%D02'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 22%%D04'00" W  233.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 35%%D09'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 13%%D03'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
134.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 25%%D06'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36%%D13'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 9%%D01'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 86%%D06'00" W  180.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 6%%D05'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 55%%D13'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 17%%D36'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
89.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 9%%D11'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
81.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 7%%D30'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 61%%D52'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 4%%D00'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
44.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 85%%D59'48" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=121.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=280.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=24°55'34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=9.56'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=280.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=1°57'21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 30%%D58'07" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=29.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=320.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=5°20'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 25%%D32'56" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 25%%D32'56" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=31.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=320.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=5°39'54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 19%%D53'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 86%%D16'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 19%%D53'38" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=143.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=375.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=21°58'58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
184.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 41%%D52'36" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=56.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=275.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=11°52'17"

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 53%%D44'53" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 53%%D09'23" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. TIE TO STATION '20+49.67 BEGIN' PER 10 SURVEYS PAGE 280 S 44°19'14'' W 35.55'



Resolution  2020-XX
Exhibit B

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITTSBURG

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 93-019408

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 85-007638

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 90-019689

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
695 OR 379

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GOVERNMENT LOT 17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANHOLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 88-022926

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFE ESTATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 93-018567

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 85-007640

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANHOLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
495 OR 674

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACKENZIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 92-009610

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 99-009290

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
772 OR 105

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O L D E N    C E N T E R   F R E E W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 88-022926

AutoCAD SHX Text
92-150-33

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-930

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA B

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.64 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 3 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 200'                    MAY, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA CITY   ,   CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 13, T. 16 N., R. 8 E., M.D.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A PORTION OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNEXATION 20-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
505 COYOTE STREET * P.O. BOX 1437 * NEVADA CITY * CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
N E V A D A   C I T Y   E N G I N E E R I N G  ,   I N C .

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
G O L D     F L A T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITTSBURG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PITTSBURG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNER  LAVA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP  ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 66%%D58'39" E  378.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 77%%D17'16" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 63%%D17'31" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 82%%D58'41" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
146.77'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 67%%D54'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
126.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 56%%D41'24" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
151.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 32%%D48'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.43'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 60%%D46'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 68%%D13'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
206.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=54.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=420.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=7°27'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
272.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88%%D59'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
92.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88%%D12'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
194.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=194.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=400.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=11°48'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 63%%D54'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
69.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=80.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=170.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=26°58'17"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 82%%D16'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
68.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 67%%D09'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
65.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 40%%D11'13" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
226.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=29.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=84°02'50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=105.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=60.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=100°17'37"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 56%%D26'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 48%%D04'02" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
410.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 53%%D16'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
447.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 46%%D26'39" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 33%%D34'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 39%%D30'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
191.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 59%%D33'37" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=83.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=530.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=9°00'49"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 38%%D45'45" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
270.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=15.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=90°31'38"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 51%%D22'03" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
153.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=81.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=225.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=20°40'38"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 73%%D17'18" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 47%%D24'41" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
350.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 38%%D35'20" E   467.99'.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLD FLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 04-052221

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 04-052219

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 04-052218

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA LP TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 13-031355

AutoCAD SHX Text
R & D HOLDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 01-018093

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVESTMENTS LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 14-005377

AutoCAD SHX Text
COALSON WEISS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTERPRISES INC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 95-007492

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O W E R   G R A S S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H I G H W A Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
V A L L E Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBINSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 58°25'58" E     611.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
195.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 38°04'44" W313.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 52°41'43" E111.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 45°22'25" E     632.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 21°50'06" E    458.46'



Resolution  2020-XX
Exhibit B

AutoCAD SHX Text
92-150-33

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-930

AutoCAD SHX Text
B O U R B O N   H I L L

AutoCAD SHX Text
U R E N   S T R E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 4 OF 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1'' = 60'                     MAY, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEVADA CITY   ,   CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 7, T. 16 N., R. 9 E., M.D.M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING A PORTION OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF NEVADA CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANNEXATION 20-0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
505 COYOTE STREET * P.O. BOX 1437 * NEVADA CITY * CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
N E V A D A   C I T Y   E N G I N E E R I N G  ,   I N C .

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED TERRITORY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L E W I S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 52%%D03'00" E   150.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 56%%D22'00" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 01-042511

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 85-021730

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 51%%D50'00" E   325.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 50%%D40'00" E   194.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 53%%D35'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 49%%D22'00" E   165.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 58%%D59'11" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36%%D54'16" W   144.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 58%%D16'00" W   122.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 54%%D38'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 59%%D13'48" W   151.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 43%%D38'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 29%%D31'00" W   138.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 06-038614

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 91-007563

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAMILY TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 17-005519

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSBURG TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 06-028184

AutoCAD SHX Text
BECK TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 01-009766

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRACH TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 09-020276

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 15-002749

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 12-010237

AutoCAD SHX Text
KRUGLER TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 99-007113

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 04-027191

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDY TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 18-010727

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.83 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
MENZIES TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Doc. No. 08-018618

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCLARTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARCUS BIAGGI

AutoCAD SHX Text
McLAUGHLIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. TIE TO THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF LANDS ANNEXED PER BOOK 9 SURVEYS PAGE 90 S 34°25' W 248.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 70°14'00" W   198.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 36°33'00" E   126.34'



NEVADA CITY – PLAN FOR SERVICES 

ANNEXATION #56,  32.5 ACRES  (Bourbon Hill, Gold Flat Road)

1. An enumeration and description of the services to be extended to the affected

territory.

The City does not need to extend any services at this time because properties are 

either already appropriately served in terms of wastewater, water, and emergency 

services or are vacant and not in need of services at this time.  However, the City in 

participation with NID for water is prepared to extend services upon subsequent 

development. 

2. The level and range of those services.

As needed, the services would be extended to the area at the same level and range as 

provided throughout the City.  

3. An indication of when those services can feasibly be extended to the affected

territory.

Several of the subject properties are already developed, and currently receive City 

sewer service.  The landowners who have the two developed parcels not currently 

connected to City sewer service will be able to apply for sewer service from the City.  

Landowners who have vacant territory proposed to be annexed, will be allowed to 

apply for sewer service as needed with development proposals. Other municipal 

services (including fire, police, and recreation) will be provided at the same level as 

the City provides throughout its jurisdiction.   

4. An indication of any improvement or upgrading of structures, roads, sewer

or water facilities, or other conditions the local agency would impose or

require within the affected territory if the change of organization or

reorganization is completed.

It is not anticipated that service of the subject territory will require the City to add 

personnel or equipment.  However, it should be noted that the City’s Measure “S” 

special tax will be available for road maintenance needs.  

5. Information with respect to how each of those services will be financed.

The cost of providing sewer and water services will be offset by connection fees, 

water, and sewer rates paid by the property owners of the subject territory.  

Additionally, the City levies the following special taxes on its properties: a 3/8 cent 

tax for fire service, a $12/SFD, and a $24/SFD.  

Resolution  2020-XX
Exhibit C



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020        www.nevadacityca.gov 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
TITLE:  Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternates(s) for the 2020 League of 
California Cities Annual Conference October 7-9, 2020  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Pass a motion designating a voting delegate and alternate(s) for the 
League of California Cities Business meeting to be held on Friday, October 9, 2020. 
  
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The League of California Cities will hold its annual Business Meeting on Friday, October 9, 2020 
in conjunction with its Annual Conference. At this meeting, the League membership considers 
and takes action on resolutions that establish League policy. 
 
In order to vote at the Business Meeting, the City Council must designate a voting delegate. The 
Council may also appoint up to two alternate voting delegates, one of whom may vote in the 
event the designated voting delegate is unable to do so. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 June 30, 2020 League of California Cities Memo 
 Voting Delegate/Alternate Form 
 Voting Procedures 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/










REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 12, 2020       www.nevadacityca.gov 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and consider appointment of City Council Members and members of 
the public to City and external Boards, Committees and Commissions for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:   
City Council Members and public appointees regularly participate as members of various boards, 
committees and commissions. A summary of current external and City boards, committees and 
commissions is provided below. Prior year appointments are included for reference purposes.  
 

EXTERNAL ORGANIZATIONS 
 

 2019/20 Appointee 2019/20 Alternate Appointed by 
LAFCo Erin Minett Duane Strawser City Council 
NCTC/Airport 
Commission/Nevada 
County Transit 

Duane Strawser Valerie Moberg - 
Vacated 

City Council 

Solid Waste & 
Hazardous Waste 
Committee 

Valerie Moberg - 
Vacated 

Duane Strawser City Council 

Economic Resource 
Council 

Duane Strawser Vacant City Council 

City Selection 
Committee 

Mayor Mayor Pro Tem N/A 

 
CITY COMMISSIONS/OVERSIGHT COMMITTEES 

 
 2020/21 

Appointee/Member 
2020/21 Alternate Appointed by 

Planning Commission Peter Van Zant 
Stuart Lauters 
Laurie Oberholtzer 
Nikiya Schwarz 
Vacant 

N/A City Council Members 
appoint a Planning 
Commissioner unless 
previously selected 

Measure S Committee Mike Barbar 
Nancy Bleile 
Niel Locke 
Vacant 
Vacant 

N/A Staff/City Council 

Measure C Committee Nate Beason 
Niel Locke 
Evans Phelps 
Vacant 
Vacant 

N/A Staff/City Council 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ADHOC COMMITTEES 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 Commission/Committee Description & Purpose 

 
 

2019/20 Staff Member 2019/20 Council 
Members 

Appointed by 

Homelessness/Vagrancy 
related challenges  

Catrina Olson 
Chad Ellis 

Erin Minett 
Reinette Senum - 
Vacated 

City Council  

Parking Committee Catrina Olson 
Bubba Highsmith 

Duane Strawser 
Valerie Moberg - 
Vacated 

Staff/City Council 

IT/Tech Committee Catrina Olson 
Loree’ McCay 

Duane Strawser 
Valerie Moberg - 
Vacated 

Strategic Planning 

Signage Committee Catrina Olson 
Bubba Highsmith 
Amy Wolfson 

Duane Strawser 
Valerie Moberg - 
Vacated 

Strategic Planning 

Cultural District Catrina Olson Duane Strawser 
Reinette Senum - 
Vacated 

Staff/City Council 

Fire Advisory Committee Sam Goodspeed Erin Minett Staff Member/Council 
Member 

Chamber Board Meeting 
Attendance 

Catrina Olson Erin Minett N/A 



COMMISSION/COMMITTEE DESCRIPTION & PURPOSE 
 

 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo). Created by the California Legislature in 1963 with 
the duties to oversee any boundary changes of City boundaries and special districts (Fire, NID, etc). 
The LAFCo office is located at the Nevada County Government Center. LAFCo members also review 
and adopt Nevada City’s Sphere of Influence Plan which is required to be updated every five years (last 
adopted in 2008). This Sphere of Influence Plan is a requirement of State law and ensures that any 
changes in city boundaries occur in a logical manner and that city services are available to serve the 
area. 
Meets:  Third Thursday every other month 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC). The Mission of the NCTC is to plan, 
communicate, and coordinate with citizens and decision makers of Nevada County, Grass Valley, 
Nevada City, Truckee and Caltrans to create a balanced regional system. This includes administration 
of regional, state, and federal funding for projects related to roadways, bridges, public transportation 
services, railways, airports, bicycle facilities, and pedestrian amenities. In development these 
transportation solutions, the NCTC initiates design concepts, engineering feasibility studies, 
environmental studies, and proposes funding sources to construct transportation improvements. Once 
these tasks are completed, projects are turned over to Caltrans or to a local jurisdiction for construction. 
Meets:  Third Wednesday every other month 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Transit Services Commission. The Transit Services Division of the Department of 
Transportation and Sanitation is responsible for the administration and delivery of public transit and 
paratransit services, primarily in western Nevada County. The Transit Services Division operates the 
Gold Country Stage, a fixed rote bus system serving western Nevada County, and administers a 
contract for the provision of specialized paratransit services for persons with disabilities. Bot services 
are operated pursuant to a joint powers agreement executed by Nevada County and the Cities of Grass 
Valley and Nevada City. 
Meets:  Third Wednesday of every other month at 8:15 a.m. and held at Grass Valley City Hall, 
Nevada City, City Hall, Nevada County Eric Rood Center, Truckee Town Hall 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Solid & Hazardous Waste Commission (Nevada County). This Commission assists the County in 
the management of solid and hazardous waste, and whose participation, review, and recommendation 
will be required before the County of Nevada may take any final action on solid and hazardous waste 
matters. The Commission will assist in the development of a comprehensive log-range plan for the 
disposal and recycling of solid and hazardous waste within the County, and the Management of the 
County’s solid waste operations, including all of the financial matters pertaining thereto. 
Meets: Second Thursday, of even months at 1:30 p.m. in the Empire Room of the Rood Admin Center 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Economic Resource Council. The Nevada Economic Resource Council (NCERC) is 
dedicated and positioned to assist in business attraction, creation and retention. NCERC collaborates 
with community leaders in business, government, chambers of commerce and business associations.  
Meets:  First Thursday of each month at 7:30 a.m. at the Green Screen Institute in Nevada City 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
City Selection Committee.  Powers and Duties of the City Selection Committee pursuant to Sections 
50270 et seq. of the California Government Code. In any county in which two or more cities are 
incorporated there is hereby created a city selection committee the purpose of which shall be to appoint 
city representatives to boards, commissions, and agencies as required by law. The current list of boards, 
committees/commissions, and agencies which the City Selection Committee appoints representatives 
to are: LAFCO, RAN, Supplemental Law Enforcement Oversight Committee, Truckee Tahoe Airport 
Land Use Commission, and Nevada County Airport Land Use Commission. The membership of each 
such city selection committee shall consist of the mayor of each city within the county. The Clerk of the 
Board of Supervisors, County of Nevada serves as the permanent Secretary and Recording Officer of 
the Committee. All City Representatives appointed by the Committee are responsible for exercising the 



duties of their positions with diligence, integrity, and the highest regard for the public trust and interest 
of the citizens of the cities within Grass Valley, Nevada City and Truckee.   
Meets: Third Monday in July annually (if there’s business to transact) 
Term Limits:  Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission is a citizen group appointed by the City Council. 
They are tasked with taking action on discretionary land use proposals and architectural review 
applications. They also make recommendations on land use policy changes and on design and land 
use aspects of City projects. 
Meets: Third Thursday of each month starting at 1:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced. 
 
Measure S Committee. The Measure S Committee’s responsibility is to oversee the paving projects 
including tracking of finances, verifying streets to be paved, and ensuring that all of the criteria of the 
public proposition are followed. 
Meets:  Twice Year 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Measure C Committee. The Measure C Committee’s responsibility is to oversee the funds for public 
safety including tracking of finances, review of annual audit and ensuring that all of the criteria of the 
public proposition are followed. 
Meets:  Once Year 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Homeless/Vagrancy related issues. This is a Joint County, Cities and Non – Profit committee 
developed to deal with homelessness issues that arise in the County and Cities. 
Meets:  Random/as needed  
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Parking Committee. Responsible for discussing and brainstorming on current and future parking 
needs, challenges and goals in the City. 
Meets:  Approximately 4 – 6 times per year 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
IT/Tech Committee. Responsible for weighing in on challenges, upgrades and concerns regarding 
existing and future technology needs for City Hall and externally for the City 
Meets:  Random/as needed determined by staff 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Signage Committee. Responsible for discussing, planning and implementing a new achievable 
signage replacement program for the Historical District and 7-Hill District 
Meets:  Approximately 2 times per year/or determined by staff 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Cultural District. Responsible for weighing in on Arts, Cultural planning, events City and County-wide 
including meeting the requirements to maintain the State designation. 
Meets:  6 times per year  
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Fire Advisory Committee. Responsible for addressing past, current and future concerns regarding all 
topics related to fire safety and vegetation management. 
Meets:  12 times per year 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Chamber Board Meetings. Responsible for attending Chamber Board meetings for City 
representation. 
Meets:  12 times per year third Monday of every month  
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 


	1 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING - 08.12.20
	WEDNESDAY,  AUGUST 12, 2020
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	3A-1 SR 8.12.20 Notice of Completion Downtown Curb Ramp Improvements
	3A-2 Reso 2020-XX NOC CDBG Downtown Curb Ramps
	3A-3 NOTICE OF COMPLETION - Downtown Curb Ramps
	Sheet1

	3B-1 SR 8.12.20 Notice of Completion CDBG Pioneer Park Bathroom
	3B-2 Reso 2020-XX NOC CDBG Pioneer Park Bathroom
	3B-3 NOTICE OF COMPLETION - CDBG Pioneer Park Bathroom
	Sheet1

	3C-1 SR 8.12.20 Award Contract Amendment for Dokken Engineering Services for Nevada Street Bridge
	3C-2  Reso Contract Ammendment Bridge Replacement Engineering Services to Dokken
	3C-3 Ltr_NevadaSt_Amend6_Jul2020_v1
	Scope_NevadaStreet_Amend6_v1.pdf
	Task 7.5 Bridge Railings (Snow Gate Removal)
	Task 7.6 Access Wall Design
	Task 8.6 Revisions to Bridge Lighting
	Task 9.4 Modifications to the City Utility Plans


	3D-1 SR 8.12.20 Contract for Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin Mixer
	3D-2 Reso 2020-XX -  Wastewater Plant Aeration Basin Mixer
	3D-3 City of Nevada WWTP Aeration Basin Mixer Quote
	Quote

	3E-1 SR 8.12.20 NID MOU Fire Hydrant Maintenance
	3E-2 NID Fire Hydrant MOU w Exhibit
	3F-1 SR 7.23.20 Ord Changing Election Dates NCMC 2.40.020
	3F-2 Second Reading and Adoption of Ord 2020-14 to Amend Elections Date NCMC Sec. 2.40.010
	3G-1 SR 8.12.20 OM Providence Mine
	3G-2 Draft OM Agreement Providence Mine
	3H-1 SR 8.12.20 Action Minutes July 23, 2020
	3H-2 Meeting Minutes - July 23, 2020
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	4A-1 SR 8.12.20 Nevada County MOU Cares Act Funding
	4A-2 MOU with City of Nevada City re PD CARE Act Funding
	4B-1 SR 8.12.20 Strategic Planning Retreat Update
	4C-1 SR 8.12.20 LAFCo SOI Update CC
	4C-2 LAFCo SOI ATT1 Nevada-County-LAFCO-Nevada-City-SOI-Notice-of-Availability
	4C-3 LAFCo SOI ATT2 Willow Vall NA position packet
	5A-1 SR 8.12.20 Annex 56  CC SR
	5A-2 Annex 56 Attachment Packet
	ATT 4 -Draft CC Reso Recommending NOE Annex.pdf
	NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

	92-150-33  ANNEXATION ROS (ALL).pdf
	92-150-33  ANNEXATION ROS (1)
	Sheets and Views
	ROS (1)


	92-150-33  ANNEXATION ROS (2)
	Sheets and Views
	ROS (2)


	92-150-33  ANNEXATION ROS (3)
	Sheets and Views
	ROS (3)


	92-150-33  ANNEXATION ROS (4)
	Sheets and Views
	ROS (4)




	7A-1 SR 8.12.20 - League Voting Delegate
	7A-2 League Conference 2020 Memo
	7A-3 Voting Delegate and Alternate form
	7A-4 Annual Conference Voting Procedures
	7B-1 SR 8.12.20 City Council Committee Appointments
	7B-2 2020 Committee-Commission Descriptions



